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Lombard Risk Management plc is a global technology firm with a
special focus on collateral management, regulatory and compliance.
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2015 HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue Total comprehensive income Adjusted net cash/debt
+5.4% -52% -4.3%

£21.5m £2.4m £2.2m
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* Revenue increased by 5.4% to £21.5m (2014: £20.4m)
* Adjusted EBITDA® £4.3m (2014: £6.0m)
* Profit before tax £2.3m:(2014: £4.4m)
¢ Cash at end of period £2.2m (2014: £2.9m)
after repayment of debt
* Strong performance from North American
Collateral business
* Number of COREP customers rose to 125 Visit www.lombardrisk.com

and follow us on Twitter

¢ Good progress made with next generation -
@LombardRiskM

of regulatory product
¢ Record order book of £5.9m (2014: £5.2m)

* Final dividend 0.045p per share (2014: 0.045p per share)
recommended to shareholders

Well placed for future growth

(1) Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation
and share-based payment charge.

Business model Financial review
page 10 page 12
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Strategic report

AT A GLANCE

A market leader in collateral management
and regulatory compliance

The Lombard Risk Management plc integrated solution suite,
together with its collateral, regulatory and financial expertise,
enables firms to better monitor and manage risk, and operate
efficiently in today’s highly regulated environment — contributing
to a stable financial services marketplace.

Trusted by financial services institutions
and large organisations around the world.

7 300+ 26+

locations all worldwide years of experience
over the world clients in the industry
Our products RISK MANAGEMENT DIVISION

We are committed to providing
innovative specialised solutions

Revenue of Risk Management COLLINE®
that stay a step ahead of complex +7% Collateral management,
collateralised trading demands, clearing, inventory management
changing market conditions, £ 1 1 . 6 m and optimisation.

increasing regulatory challenges,
ongoing financial and operational

risk pressures and new financial

regulatory compliance mandates as they OBERON®
arise. Lombard Risk Management plc 549 of group Valuation and risk of derivatives
has two key divisions: revenues in and other financial products.

Risk (Coliateral) Management : FY 2015
and Regulatory Compliance.

Learn more about our products:
www . Jombardrisk.com/products
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Worldwide presence

Lombard Risk Management plc is headquartered in London, employs around 300 people and is expanding, and operates globally via

subsidiaries who both develop and deliver its products and a range of services, as well as a carefully selected group of alliance partners.

Offices
Representation

Alliance Partners

SAN FRANCISCO ATLANTA

MIAM)

Alliance Partners

LONDON (HQ)
LUXEMBOURG
NEW YORK
TOKYO
SHANGHAI
HONG KONG
MUMBAI
SINGAPORE
CAPE TOWN

Joint delivery, support and implementation through Alliance Partners.
‘A team of global partners with complementary skills in risk and regulatory compliance, enable us to deliver enhanced offerings to solve

our collective customers’ most critical business challenges around the world.
Accenture | Broadridge | CSC | Genpact { NTT Data | Oracle | PWC - www.lombardrisk.com/partners-afliances

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE DIVISION

Revenue of Regulatory Compliance The REPORTER platform REG-Xperts
+4% End-to-end, automated global Software solutions designed
regulatory reporting. by experts.
£9.9m
REPORTER MIS LISA®
469 of group Making the most of valuable Complete solution for liquidity
revenues in regulatory data. scenario analysis.
FY 2015
ComplianceASSESSOR™ REFORM™
Addressing regulatory risk. Real-time, high-volume regulatory

reporting and connectivity.

Annual report and accounts 2015 Lombard Risk Management plc
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Strategic report

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Another year of revenue growth

Strategic report
The Strategic report comprises:

¢ Executive Chairman’s statement
{pages 04 to 05)

¢ Business review
{pages 06 to 11)

s Financial review
{pages 12 to 13)

¢ Principal risks and uncertainties
{pages 14 to 15)

The Strategic report was approved by the
Board on 20 May 2015 and signed on its

behalf by:

Philip Crawford
Executive Chairman
e 20 May 2015
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The Board is pleased to report another year cf revenue growth
for Lombard Risk Management plc and a number of significant
client wins.

"Highlights

The Group recorded revenue growth in both its Reguiatory Compliance
and Risk Managament divisions but the rate of growth dedlined
on previous years and we updated the market to this effect

on 11 March 2015. The decline in revenue growth was largely
attributable to regulatory delays which has led o the deferral

of opporiuniiies rather than their loss. A pumber of significant
contract wins in, the second half of the year reaffirms our beiief

in the value that our technology solutions provide to our dlients.

The Group has made substantial progress with its Alliances
programme which has delivered revenues in the year and
gives us grounds for optimism over the coming months.
We consider the support and engagement of our partners
to be further validation of our product and service offerings.

The environment of requiatory change centinues apace and we
nave coniinued to invest strategicatly in both our products sand

our infrastructure to ensure that we remain in a position to provide
our customers with the highest quality praducts, implemeniation
and post-sale support. Following the expiry of our office jeases

in London, New York and New Jersey, we have taken on new
premises for our Group headquarters in London and have
combined our US East Coast teams into a consolidated office

in Manhattan, New York.

The irivestment in the Group's infrastructure is reilected in the profits
for the year which are down ¢n the prior yeaf, but this is primarily
as a resuli of increasing resources through the recruitment. of additional
headcount for both the delivery and support of cilent projects.

Dividend

We have pursued 3 progressive dividend policy for 3 number of
years now and on the back of the Group's performance for the
yaar, the Board proposes & final divisend of 0.045p per share
which, if approved, will be paid on 27 July 2015 to those
sharehcliders on the regisier on 10 July 2G15. This brings the
dividend for the year to 0.08p per share (2014: 0.075p), an
increase of 6.7%.



Strategy
We staied iast year that the Board intended to replicate the strong
performance from its direct saies tean in Europe in the Americas
and Asia Pacific and we are pieased to say that the Group
experienced encouraging growth for its cellateral management
product, particuiarly in the North American region. The Board

- cantinues ta have {3ith in the direct sales function and, following
some initial success in the past financal year, expects 1o see this
complemented by increased sales traction through our ginbal
network of parthers.

The increase in oppertunities through our partnar network is providing
us with exposure to both a broader range of larger clients and
opportunities in new territories. [t is the Board’s intention to
proactively invest in these opportunities to serve as a further
engine for growth.

Employees

Cur employees remain one of our core assets and their specialist
knowiledge, commitment, diligence and pride in what they do

is 2 credit 1o both them and the Group as a whole. We ramain
proud of the diversity that is evident in our workforce and the
Board would like to thank all of our empicyees {or their

valued contribution.

Board of Directors

Since the Annual General Meating held in 2014 we have appuoinied
Nigel Gurney as Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer,
effective 1 September 2014,

0On 18 May 2015 John Wisbey informad the Board of his
intention io stand down as Chief Executive of the Company
with immediate effect. Previously the Company’s Non-executive
Chairman, Philip Crawford is now the full time Executive Chairman
on an interim basis until such time that the Board is in & position
to agpoini a new Chief Executive. John Wisbey will continue

to serve the Company as a Non-executive Director.

AGM

The Annual General Meeting will be held at the Group's London
office at 9.30am on Thursday 9 July 2015. The Directors iook
forward to meeting shareholders at that time.

The Board is pleased to report
another year of revenue
growth for Lombard Risk
Management plc and a
number of significant

client wins.

Philip Crawford
Executive Chairman
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Strategic report

BUSINESS REVIEW

‘e have continued to invest appreciably

during the year, in product development,
delivery capability and in further
strengthening the sales team

Summary
e Revenue increased by 5.4% to £21.5m
(2014: £20.4m)

e Adjusted EBITDA decreased to £4.3m
(2014: £6.0m)

e Profit before tax decreased:to £2.3m
(2014: £4.4m)

s Strong performance from North American
Coilateral business

e Number of COREP customers rose to 125

¢ Good progress made with next generation
of regulatory product

e Furthier significant progress with
Alliances Programme

e Well placed for future growth

We: enter: the new: financial

Philip Crawford
Executive Chairman
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The year was another record year for revenues, although revenue
growth was not as strong as we had hoped. Revenue incraased
by 5.4% to £21.5m, giving a five y2ar compound annual revenue
growth rate of 19.2%. Annually recuring revenues rmade up 42%
(2014: 429%) of total revenues. Net cash at 31 March 2015 was
almost unchanged from the level twelve months previously at
£2.24m (2014: £2.26m).

in line with the Groug's usual trading pattern, second half revenue
of £12.2m {(2014: £13.1m) was higher than the first half of £9.3m
(2014: £7.3m) and accountad for 56.9% of the year's total revenue.
This compares with an average for second half revenue in the last
five years of 55.39% of the year's total revenue. The previous year
was a clear outlier with second half revenues making up 64.4%
of the full year revenues, the only year in ten years that it had
exceeded 60%.

We have continued to invest appreciably during the year, in product
development, delivery capability and in further strengthening the
sales team, inciuding the appointment of a Managing Director,
Americas. Costs were also significantly higher in the secend half,
reflecting an increase in headzount and this resulted in & fall in EBITDA
and also prefit before tax. In addition, the proporticn of deveiopment
costs capitalised was fowear, which also affectied profitability.

Different paris of the business performed with varying degrees of
success. The UK requlatory business had an extremely high growth
rate in 2014 with the UK regulatory change around the European
Banking Authority's {"EBA”) COREP and despite continued regulatory
change it was hard to repeat that performance for twe years in

a row.

The Risk Management and Trading business performed weill, especially
in North America and Japan, and we conciuded a number of
significant contract wins in the financial year for our COLLINE?
cellateral management software in both North America and Asia,
along with the successiul depioyment of two substantiai projects
for COLLINE® in Europe. There is appreciable regulatory change
affecting the collateral management space, including regulations
being agreed by the International Organization of Securities
Commissioners {“10SCQO"). However, towards the end of the
financial year the key regulatory date for iOSCO slipped by nine
months, and this reduced the urgency with which our customers .
are required to make their buying decisions, with resultant geferra
of revenue.



Outlook

management. We see the growtl: in our partner proqramme as
teing an important factor in the avolution of the Group over the
corning months.

The EBAs in
from thiswiii

itiatives continue to keep us extremely busy, and revenue
continue in the:current financial yeat with:mre:revenue

contract to deliver the new United Siates Federal Reserve reports
FRY-14, and we expect this to be an important contribuiter to the

conciuded a contract with a major US bank for its Asian requlatory
reporting, and this is strategicaily imporiani to our Asian strategy.
Additional growth can also be expacted to come from the Compliance
area, for exampie for the new Senior Managers Regime which
comes inte effect in March 2016. Our proportion of revenue from
Alliances is expectad o grow quite appreciably this yvear As a result
of ali the above we remain confident of further:growth:in the: new

anaiher ati-time high of sround £9.5m (2014: £8.6m), cur highest
ever level of order bock at £5.9m and a good sales pipeline.

We wiii continue with our planned investments to support our
future growth. Current trading is satisfactory and our expectations
for the year as a whole remain breadly unchanged.

Principal activities
The Company is a holding company. The principal activities of the
Group are the provisien of trading, valuation and risk management

sy . Ale
nvestment fitrns, -asse
firms operating ia:financia

thanadgérs, enéfgy ¢
Lnarkets and the wider iinan:

al industry:

Risk and regulatory disclaimer

Forregulatory reasons:the 8eard does notimake externat revenus:or profit: £
analysts who create market guidance) and while the Board dearly does plan to achieve optimum

companies it daes work wi

Strategy

Governance, Risk Management and Compliance (" GRC") space,
with a spedial focus on collateral management, raguliatory and
compliance. We are a market leader in our chosen niches. With
everincreasing demands from requlators, GRC is one of the fastest

ase “sweet spot”. The

worked in that pericd, and the Board has no current plan to
diversify out of this area for now as we believe a ot of shareholder
value can be obtained from continuing to focus on this area over
the next few years.

Indeed by achieving a consistently higher level of excellence in

all the geographies we cover, leveraging our client relaticnships,
developing our Alliances programme further and continuing with
our record of investing in winning products in our chosen market
space, we believe that the growth rate that we have achieved

in the:fast five years can be continued:.or even exceaded with:the

caveat that there will inevitably be swings in growth rate owing
to the cycle of requiatory charge. Gur main strategy at present
is to grow through organic growth. We have, however, in the past
made succassful acquisitions and we hape to do so 3gain in the

future. Our appetite to make acquisitions wiil be a combination of

and, impertantly, the achievabie acquisition price in relation to cur
own share price. While aur share price remains on lower revenue
and earnings multiples than some of our targets’ expectations
despite aur having 3 higher growth rate, the Board's wiliingness

1o dilute our own shareholders by issuing shares at the market
price in orser ta pay a {ull price to a seller is necessarily fimited.

recasts (atthoughiin: common with mast other:quated

Strategic ceport should
§ $tratan :

Annual report and accounts 2015 Lombard Risk Management plc 67
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Strategic report

BUSINESS REVIEW continued

Turnover for both operating divisions, being Regulatory
Compliance and Risk Management and Trading, were
respectively 3.6% and 7.0% higher than the prior year.

Philip Crawford
Executive Chairman

Key performance indicators
The Directors have monitored the performance of the Group with
particular reference to the following key perfermance indicators:

- turnaver by praduct fine and geography compared to prior year;
- contractual backlog and contract longevity;

- utilisation and profitability of professional services against
budgets and marketi norms;

- cash management - actual compared to budget; and

- naperating costs by function as an absclute measure and as
a proporticn of revenues compared to prior periods, forecasts
and markeat norms. )

Turnover for baih operating divisions, being Regulatory Compiiance
and Risk Management and Trading, were respectively 3.6% and
7.0% higher than the prior year. The increase in revenuas was
predominantly in Asia Pacific and the Americes {previous year the
United Kingdom).

Operating cosis have been monitored and have incraased
consistently across both operating divisions,

Business model!

Products

tombard Risk Management plc has two key divisions, namely Risk
Management and Trading and Regulatory Compliance. The main
software products within these divisions are:

i) Risk Management and Trading division ~ 54% of Group
revenues in FY 2015 (2014: 53%):
a. COLLINE® .. OTC Collateral management, Repo, Securities
tending, Cash and Inventory Management, Optimisation.
Market-leading position including several Tier 1 banks; and

b. OBERON® valuation and risk of derivatives and other
financial products.

COLLINE® had a successfui yaar with a number of significant
contract wins, some in conjunction with our partners. COLLINE®
now has modules for OTC Collateral, Clearing, Repo, Securities
tending, Exchange Traded Funds and Optimisation, making it a
very comprehensive offering. Not afl our existing COLUNE® cliants
use ail this functicnality and this is an upsell opportunity and
challenge {or us.

OBERON® aiso had a good year and remains a commercially
successiul product.

ii) Regulatory Compliance division — 46% of Group revenues
in FY 2015 (2014: 47%)
a. REPGRTER ~ Regulatory Reporting in multiple countries;
market-leading position in UK {eg FCA and PRA reporting);
b. REG-Reperter® — Requlatery Reporting in the US {eg FDIC,
FRBNY reporting) and various countries in Americas; market
leader for reporting by foreign banks in the US;

¢ LISA® .. stross testing of liquidity reporting; and

d. ComplianceASSESSOR™ — product that altows firms to
manage their cngoing compliance with requlations and
produce multiple reports around the related compliance risks.

This year saw a further 58 client qroups sign up for our COREP
sahution, with a muttiple of that for the exact nuimber of legal entities.
We also concluded a contract with @ major US bank for its Asian
requlatony reporting. In the US we coniinue 10 sell some of the
new Federal Reserve reports to our existing REG-Reporter? customers.

Clients and client geography

Many of the Comgany’s clients have operations acrass multiple
countries. Overall we do business with around thirty of the top fifty
banks in the world. In the UK we do business with over 140 separata
banking groups, with the number of legal entities using our software
considerably higher than that. Altogether we have clients in over
25 countries and in centres such as Ltondon and New York we have
clienis with parent companies or head offices in many maore couniries.

We regard cur clieni base and the asscciatad relationships as a very
important asset of the Group. We have had very few diient losses
over the past few years oiher than when 3 bank closes a UK or US
branch and therefore ceases to need our services in that branch.

In FY 2015, 47% of our revenues were from the UK {2014: 59%)
and a further 16% from EMEA non-UK {2014: 13%).This is not at
ail because we are & UK or EMEA focussed firm but because of our
very strong position in the requlatory market in the UK. Revenues
frorn the Americas represented 24% of Group revenue {2014; 20%}
as a result of strong COLLINE® revenue.

Intellectual property '

The intellectual properiy of the Group remains a key assat,
enabling Lombard Risk Management-pic to be a market leader
in its chesen markets.

To maintain a market-leading position, the Group continues to invest
in its intellectual property. The cost of development of innovaiive,
function-rich, new technology is material to the Group’s finances.
The Group capitalises these develapment costs, in line with and
subject to the conditions of I1AS 38. in FY 2014 the Group
capitalised £5.1m.

08 Lombard Risk Management plc Annual report and accounts 2015



Key performance indicators

The Directors have monitored the performance
of the Group with particular reference to the
following key performance indicators:

Turnover by trading division
fm

2015

2014

11.6 10.8 9.6 9.9

Regulatory Compliance
division (47 %)

Risk Management
division (53%)

Turnover by geography
fm
2015
3.0
2014
1.6
4.1
5.1 120  10.0
2.7
3.4

United Kingdom

Rest of Europe, Middle East
and Africa

The Americas
Asia Pacific

Functional costs (fully expensed) expressed as a proportion

of functional revenue (£m)

. 5.3
Professional

. 4.6
services

Support and
maintenance

Sales and

marketing* 43

Research and

development* 53

General and
administration
(including
property costs)*

5.2

* Versus total Cost
revenue

Revenue

87%

2.2 6.7 33%

21.5 20%

21.5 25%

215 24%

Working capital management
£m

Trade receivables
+28%

£3.7m

15 . 3.7
14] 2.9

Trade payables

+29%

£0.9m

15| 0.9
14| 0.7

Administrative expenses
+19.6%

£18.9m

15| 18.9
14| 15.8

Investment in development

f5°.1m

15| 5.1
1] 5.3

Annual report and accounts 2015 Lombard Risk Management plc
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Strategic report

BUSINESS REVIEW continued

Our business model

X
PROVIDE

2 .

Innovation:
industry-leading products provide-
risk and requlatory solutions for
global financial. .
services operations.

1 w—

> - E

W Expertise- -~ Managing risk  Scalability r

o Significant pool of , ' ; Ability for solutions .

E business‘practitioners an d reg u l.a to ry to lbe atg;?el:i Itf;ﬂS g

Y T and experienced - Comp“‘ance ‘organisations of m

o : ‘implementation : : . : any size. 2

cc_:nsul’tants : ~

1 WHY WE EXIST - Agility

2 OURKEY DIFFERENTIATORS

© 3" HOW WE DELIVER

Personnel : :
We are headquartered in London, England but 64% of our 302
employees work outside the UK. Our development and testing
centre is in Shanghai, China. We have offices in the US (New York),
Hong Kong, Singapore and Tokyo with representatives in other centres.

Inevitably people are our greatest asset and also by far our greatest
expense with personnel costs being 80% of our cash cost base.
Retaining key staff is always very important to us.

We have an extremely diverse employee base with 26 different
nationalities employed and 91 female staff members and 211

male staff members, being 30% and 70% of the staff respectively,
which we believe compares favourably with technology companies
where there are traditionally many more male than female applicants.
It is an important principle for us to encourage talent and to recruit
on merit without consideration of gender, race, age or sexual
preference. For this reason we do not set targets for percentages
of recruitment as we want to recruit the best candidate who applies
for the job. Three of our sixteen-person executive leadership team
are female, although we do not have any female representation on
the Board.

10

‘Adaptable and flexible
business model to suit our
clients’ requirements

MAINTAIN

Environmental issues

‘UK company law now requires. that the Board of fully listed companies

comments on environmental issues. Whilst the Group is not fully
listed, we comment on this matter as we believe it is best practice
to do so. As a financial technology business producing software
for the financial industry, the environmental impact of the Company
is small. We do not pollute the environment and arquably our
products save appreciable paper as we help our clients produce
reports electronically rather than printing them out. Naturally with
offices and clients in multiple countries our staff do undertake air
travel and this has an environmental impact.

Social community and human rights issues

UK company law now requires that the Board of fully listed companies
comment on social community and human rights issues. Whilst the
Group is not fully listed, we comment on this matter as we believe
it is best practice to do so. The Group has its offices in generally
high-quality buildings in the main centres in which it operates,

with relatively pleasant working conditions for employees,

including dedicated computer equipment and air conditioning.

Lombard Risk Management plc Annual report and accounts 2015



Our products and services cycle

All stages have opportunities
for revenue growth.

PROVIDE

Through a combination of
expertise, experience and
software, Lombard Risk
Management plc PROVIDES

IMPLEMENT

Our professional services team
work closely with clients to
ensure successful delivery

and integration.

MAINTAIN

Software and content is
updated in line with changing
regulatory and market issues,
and our client services team

SATISFY

We work closely with our
clients to ensure that their
business and technology
needs are met fully.

solutions that address real
business needs.

are on hand to provide expert
support to our clients.

We have an extremely diverse employee base
with 26 different nationalities employed.

Philip Crawford
Executive Chairman

While the Group encourages a strong work ethic, typical working
hours are in line with the norm for the country concerned.
Extracurricular activities are proactively encouraged in the larger
offices such as London and Shanghai including, for example,
charity runs, cricket and badminton. HR departments ensure

an appropriate level of care for the welfare of employees as
well as the implementation of HR policies.

The Company complies with the laws to which it is subject in

not trading in countries where this is prohibited by sanctions, and
takes account of Foreign Office warnings on travel to dangerous
areas. There will inevitably be cases where the Board or individual
employees may disagree with, for example, aspects of the human
rights record of the country concerned or the ethical standards,
environmental, pollution or health effects of parts of corporations
we deal with. The Board feels that such issues are more appropriately
dealt with at governmental level or through regulators or the
courts and would not normally restrict dealings by the Group with
such entities or countries unless it became concerned about the
reputational risk of not doing so.

Risks

The Group's main risks are incorporated in the risk analysis included
with this strategic report. In addition the Group’s multinational
operations expose it to financial risks that include market risk,
credit risk, operational risk and liquidity risk. The Directors review
and agree policies for managing each of these risks. These policies
have remained unchanged from previous years and are detailed

in note 15 to the accounts.

Annual report and accounts 2015 Lombard Risk Management plc 1"
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Strategic report

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Group revenue increased by 5% to a record
£21.5m compared with £20.4m in the prior year.

Nigel Gurney
Chief Financial Officer

Summary

e Revenue increase by 5.4% to £21.5m
(2014: £20.4m)

e Adjusted EBITDA® £4.3m (2014: £6.0m}
s Profit before tax £2.3m (2014::£4,4m)

e Cash at end of period £2.2m (2014: £2.9m)
after repayment of debt

{3} Earnings hefore interen, tax, depreciztion, amartisation end share- based payment charges.

12

Group results

roup revenue increased by 5% to a record £21.5m compared with
£20.4m in the prior year, with growth recorded in both the Regulatory
Compliance and Risk Management and Trading software divisions.
Licence revenues increased in the vear by 1% to £9.5m (2014: £9.4m),
representing 44% of revenues (2014: 46%). Recurring reveniues
iotalied £9.1m compared with £8.6m in the prior year and represented
approximately 42% of revenue {2014: 429%). Recurring revenues
now have a current annual run rate in excess of £8.5m.

Operating profit before share-based payment charges, depreciation
and amortisation (adjusied EBITDA} was £4.6m (2014: £6.0m).
Profit bafore tax fell to £2.3m (2014: £4.4im), resuiting in & basic
earnings per share of 0.87p (2014: 2.07p). The propesed full year
dividend per share is an increase of 6.7% to 0.08p in fine with the
group’s progressive gividend policy, which equates to a dividend
covar ratio of 10.9 times.

The effective rate of tax for the year was 0.1% (2014: credit of 16.6%.
The deferred tax asset was marginally higher ai £1.0m (2014: £1.0m)
and the unrecognised deferred tax asset was £1.5m (2014: £2.0m).

Cash flow

Cash generatad in operations was £5.7m (2014: £5.2m). Balancing
working capital requirements with investing in longer-term growth
remnains an integral part of the Group’s financial respansibilities,

as is the case for many growth technology companies. The Group
produces weekly cash forecasts which are monitored closely.
During the last financiei year the Group entered into e £2.5m
Revolving Loan Agreermant with Barclays Bank Plc at a margin

of 3.85%. There were no amounts owing under this agreement

al the end of the financial year.

investment in development expenditure that was capitalised was
£5.1m (2014: £5.3mj.

The Group raised £0.03m (2014: £0.4m) resulting from the
exercise of employee stock options.

Net Group cash, being cash and cash equivalents less borrowings,
of £2.2m is marginally down on the prior year (2014: £2.2m)
following the repayment of the Sterling bark loan of £2.0m that
had been taken out in 2012, against which £0.67m was repaid

in the year.



Balance sheet

Non-current assets at 31 March 2015 increased ta £22.6m

(2014: £18.0m) primarily as a resuit of the continued investment
in capitalised devalopment costs. This invesiment was applied across
the Group's suite of preducts and included £1.5m of investment
in COLLINE®, £1.3m in Eurogean regulatory reporiing and £6.9m
in the software glatform to support its requlatary reporting products.
The Directors are confident that this investment will bring future
ieneiits to the business by enabling dlients to both continue to
meet their requiatory reporting obligations and more effectively
managa risk ir: an increasingly reguiated envircnient and by
broadening the reach of the Group’s products through beth direct
and indiract saies channeis, The carrying value of non-current
assets includes £5.9m in respect of geodwill arising on previous
acquisitions, £4.5m in respect of the written-down vatue of the
Group's investrnent in COLLINE®, £3.4m in respect of the Group’s
reguiatony reporting products and £1.2m relating 1o the development
of the software platform that supports these preducts. During the
year the Group’s techrical team incurred costs of £2.4m thai did
not meet the criteria for capitalisation and were therefore recorded
33 an expanse in the profit and loss account,

Net Group cash at 31 March 2015 was £2.2m (2014 £2.3m). The
Group had no borrowings at the balance sheet date (2014: £6.7m).
Trade receivables were 17% of revenuas as at 31 March 2015,
compared to 14% and 13% for 2014 and 2013 respectively.

FRC review

The Group's financiai statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
were subject to a review by the Conduct Committee of the Finandial
Reporting Coundil ("FRC"). Further information on the outcome
of this review can be found in the Repart of the Augit Commitlee
and in note 23 to the financial statements.

Year-on-year trends

Thne capitalisation of deveiopment costs for the last four years

has an impact on the interpretation of the financial performance
of the Group. Internally the Group’s operating budge: ang monthly
rnanagement accounts measure financial performance assuming
no such capitalisation. The table beiow allows users to make 3 more
informed assessment of the financial performarice of the Group.

Shareholder information

The Group's website a3t www. lombardrisk.com containg a wide
range of information about our activities and visitors can download
copies of the report and accounts in addition to newsletters and
other articles of interest.

Nigel Gurney
Chief Financial Officer
20 May 2015

Year-on-year trends
Year ended 31 March
2015 2014 201

im fin £m
Reveniue {including pro forma from acquired business for 2012) 215 20.4 16.8
Adjusted EBITDA with no capitalisation {0.5) 0.6 1.0
Adjustes EBITDA including capitalisation 4.6 6.0 5.3
Profit before tax with no capitalisation (1.1) 0.2 0.7
Profit before tax inciuding capitalisation 23 4.4 39
Total technology expenditure® 7.5 7.1 6.1
Cash generated in operations with no capitalisation** (0.5) 0.7 1.0

h, developmient, testing, suppont and product mainten
t less capi

talised develagreent costs adding back depreciation, armortisation and shar

e-tased payineis chaige,
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Strategic report

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Effectively managing risks is an integral part of
Lombard Risk Management plc continuing success.
The Group has identified its main risks and is taking

appropriate action to manage and mitigate these risks.

The Group's multinational operaticns expose it to financial risks that indude market risk, credit risk, operationai risk and fiquidity risk.
The Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks. These policies have rerained unchanged from previcus years

and are detailed in note 15 to the accounts.

Tha key factors affeciing the Group's performance are expecied {o inciude the following:

Description of risk

Potential impact

Mitigation

Banking sector and financial industry regulation

There continues to appear 1o the Group 1o
be a multiple-year surge in requiation, ard
mare firms are now in scepe for regulation
than before. increased regulation, whilst
representing 2 significant cpportunity for
the Group, brings the risk of becoming so
onerous that clients close down or reduce
the size of the business to which we wouild
sell. in addition, a return to light touch
regulation would not be beneficial 1o

the Group.

The withgrawal of dienis from the

regulated space and a return to light
touch reguiation would both have a
material impact on Group revenues.

Expertise within the Group's product teams
allows it to closely monitor the pace of
change of finandiai ragulations and make
informed and educated decisions on where
to focus its investment exgenditure to meet
new client needs as they come on stream.
The Group maintains 3 clear and detailed
roadmap of forthcoming regulatory change
allowing it to plan ahead and allocate
investment resources accordingly.

Regulatory and market change

A time of regulatory change increasas the
risk of clints changing software sysierns as
an obligation to upgrade systems prasents an
cpportunity for cliants Lo review solutions
availabla in the market.

Failure to invest at these times would
increase the risk of clients moving to
competitor solutions.

The Group has a good track record of
benefiting from such regulatory change
through winning new ciients and in crder
te maintain this track record,-the Group's
Account Management and Product teams
maintain good markei intelligence to
identify where client systems reviews are
taking place. Targeted campaigns have
resuited in some notable successes

in bringing new clients as a result of
such changes.

Functional and technological innovation

Vhile it can take several years for dients
ta replace an ageing product that still
functions adequately, new clients will
exgec 1o buy products that meet their
needs at commencernent or that will
do so in a near timaframe.

Failure to keep pace with technological

change will materiaily imgact the Group’s

ability tc remain competitive in
propasals for new business.

Capital planning recognises the need to
allocate a proportion of the technical
develepment budget for technical as wetl
as market or regulatory change. The Group
is confident that it has a clear view on
tecnnical evolution.
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Description of risk

Potential impact

Mitigation

Failure to effectively support clients

Failure {o provide timely and effective
support te customers.

An inabilily to support the customer
post sale will have a detrimental effect
on the Group's reputation and its ability
to renew existing licences angd seli new
products to existing clients.

The Group recagnises the importance

of ensuring appropriate resources in its
support function, thiough both adeguate
staffing and suitable and ongaing training.
in addition tie increased engagement with
the Group’s alliance partners pravides it
with an increase in ciient-facing resources.
Client and Product support is an integral
part of business and resource planning.

Consolidation of the banking sector

Significani marger activity in the banking
sector would reduce the addressable rarket
and poientially increase the proporiion of the
market that was of sufficient scale to invest
inin-house solutions.

Increased competition froni in-house

solutions and a reduction in addressable
market would have a material impact on
both the Group's revenues and its ability
to continue to invest in its product suite.

There has been less M&A activity than

the Group expected and indeed a number
of new names have emerged that have
become ciients for regulatory reporting.
The trend towards both the demerger

of cperations from existing banks and

the grant of new banking licenzes has
materially reduced the level of this risk for
the Group. Tre Group sees 1o suggestion
of increased M&A activity at this time.

Competition risk

There are inevitably competitors and the
identity of such competitors changes over
the yaars as existing competitors rise or
fail or are taken over and as new
competitors emerge.

The imgpact of increased competition,
whether it is due to new entrants or
technclogical innovation is obvious.
The Group needs to maintain market
awareness and the ability t¢ respond
swiftly to competitive pressures.

The Group has focussed its business in
areas where it can be one of a handful
of market leaders in a niche and has
been succassful in this with a number
of its products.

Annual report and accounts 2015 Lombard Risk Management pic
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Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

16

Dear Shareholder,

The Board is committed to high standards
of integrity and corporate governance and
consistently seeks to apply the principles set
out in the UK Corporate Governance Code
("the Code") as judged appropriate by the
Board for an AlM listed company.

We do not comply with the UK Corporate
Governance Code. However, we have reported
on our corporate governance arrangements
by drawing upon best practice available,
including those components of the UK
Corporate Governance Code we consider

1o be relevant to the company and

best practice.

We recognise the importance of diversity

independent Non-executive Directors have
business backgrounds that suppiement the
remaining members of the Board.

In September 2014, Nigel Gurney joined
the Board as Group CFO, having joined
the Company in July 2014.

The Company seeks to ensure it has
an appropriate balance of Executive
and Non-executive elements on its Board.

Philip Crawford
Executive Chairman
20 May 2015



The role of the Board

The Board is responsibie for the overali management of ithe Group,
its strategy and long-term objectives, having regard to the interests
of shareholders and the protection and enhancement of shareholder
vaiue. The Board ensures that the nacessary financial and other
resources are made available to enable those objectives to be met,
and that chjeciives ame only set that are congistent with the anticipaied
financial and other resources. It has a schedule of matters reserved
for its approval inciuding, bui not limited to, decisions on strateqgy
and risk managemerit, approval of budgets, acquisitions and
disposals, major cagital expenditure, legal and insurance issues,
Board structure and the appointment of advisers. In some areas
respansibility is delegated to committees ¢f the Board or to the
Executive within clearly defined terms of reference.

Once the strategic and financial objectives of the Company
have been agreed with and sei by the Board it is the role of
the Chief Executive and the Executive team to ensure that
through the day-tc-day management of the Group's business
they are achievad.

All Diractors are subject 1o election by the shareholders at the
next general meeting following appoiniment to the Board and
to annual re-election. The Executive Directars have service
centracts, which are terminable upon periods between three
and twelve menths' notica.

The names of the current Directors together with their biographical
details are set out on page 20 of this annual report.

The Direciors are given access Lo independent professional advice
at the Group's expense, when the Directors deem it is necessary
in order for them to cany cut iheir responsibilities.

The Board meets at least six tirmes a year and the Audit Committee
andg Remuneration Commitiee normaily meet on a formal basis
twice a year.

Thke Board receives appropriate and timely information prior to each
meeting, with a formal agenda and Board and cormmitiee papers
being distributed before meetings take place. Any Director may
challenge Group proposals and decisions are taken democratically
after discussion. Any Director who feeis that any concern remains
urniraselved after discussion may ask for that concern 1o be noted
in the minutes of the meeting. Any specific actions arising from
such meetings are agreed by the Board and then followed up

by management.

The Graup mainiaing, for its Directors and cificers, Hability
insurance for any claims against them in that capacity.

Board membership

Steve Rogers Philip Crawford

John McCormick Nigel Guriiey

Sohn Wisbey Nick Davies

Audit Committee

Philip Crawtord John McCormick

Remuneration Committee

Steve Rogers Philip Crawford

John McCormick

Executive
Director

Non-executive

Director

Committee
Chairman

Committee
member

Committee
Chairman

Commiittee
member
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Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

The role of the Board continued

The Group has effective procedures in place to deai with conilicts
of interest. The Board is aware of other commitments of its Directors
and changes to these commitments are reported o the Board.

A summary of the Board's main work in the year endad
31 March 2015 includes:

strateqy and delivery, with a particular focus on the develogment
of the Group’s aliiances strategy;
- evaluation of extarnal growth epportunities;

- financial overview; and

corporate governance and compliance inciuding selection

of additional Board members.

While the Board seeks io operate coliaboratively betwean
Executive and Non-executive Directors in order to ensure the
affective oparation of the Board, there is a clear division between
the formal responsibilities of the Directors as set out below.

Diractors’ roles
The Chairman’s main role is to:
~ ensure googd corporate governance;

- leas the Board, ensuring the effectiveness i the Board
in all aspects of its role;

- ensure effective communication with shareholders; and
- set the agenda for Baard meetings in conjunction with the
Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary, and
ensure that all Directors are encouragad to participate fully
in the activities and decision-making process of the Board.
The Chief Executive Officer’s main role, currently being undertaken
by the Exacutive Chairman is to:
- lead the Company and provide the key recommenrdations
10 the Board an corporate strateqy;

- run the Cormpany on a day-to-day basis;

— provide strategic direction te the Company’s management team;

- sel, abjectives for and review the performance of the Company’s
management team,

~ play a key role in external client, partner and
shareholder relationshigs;

- be responsibie, along with the Executive team, for implernenting
the decisions of the Board and iis comimitiees; ang

- ba the Company spokesperson, communicaiing with external
audiences, such as investors, aralysts and the media.

The Non-executive Directors’ main role is to:

- challenge the opinions of the Executive Direciors, provide fresh
insight in terms of strategic direction and bring their diverse
experiance and expartise o the benefit of the ieadership of
the Group;

~ piay a full part in ensuring good corporate governance;

— assess the performance of the Chairman;

- provide a sounding board for the Chairman and serve
as an intermediary for the other Diractors as necessary;

- scrutinise the perfermance of the Executive Directors in terms
of meeting agreed goals and objectives;

- be available to shareholders if they have concerns which contact
through the normal channeis of Chairman, Chief Executive Cfficer
or other Executive Directors has failed 1o resoive or for which
such contact is inappropriate;

- monitor the reporiing of performance;

- assist the Executive Directors with high level external contacts
where this is possible; and

- gnsure that the finandal information, contrals and systems of
risk ranagement within the Group are robust and defensible.

Board length of service

|26 years

Fhitip Crawford |5 years

John McCormick [1.5 years

Nick Davies |5 years

Steve Rogers | 1.5 years

Nige! Gurney |6.5 years

John Wishey
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internal controls

The Direciors are rasponsibie for the sysiems of iniernal contrel.
Although no system of internal control can provide absciute
assurance against material misstatement or loss, the Group’s
systems ar2 designed to provide the Directors with reasonable
assurance that problems are identified on a timely basis and
dealt with appropriately. The Board considers that there have
bean ne substantial weaknesses in internal financial conircls
resuiting in any material losses, contingencies or uncertainties
and thus subject io disclosure in the accounts. The Board

has considered the need for an internal audit function and

has concluded that there is no current nieed for such a function
within the Company.

Accounting policies

The Board considers the appropriateness of its accounting policies
on an annual tasis. The Grougp’s financial statements for the year
anded 31 March 2013 were subject to a review by the Conduct
Committee of the Financial Reporting Council ("FRC"). Further
details of this review are set out in the report of the Audit Committee
and in note 23 to tha consalidsted financial staiements. Following
a review of the Group's poiicies and processes conducted as part
of the FRC review, the Board believes that its accounting policies
and estimation techniques are appropriate, in particular in
relation to incame rezognition, research and development

and deferred expenses.

Information

Beard reports and papers are circulated to the Birectors in advance
of the relevant Bcard or commitiee meeting. These papers are
supplemented by information specifically requesied by the
Directers from time to time. Minutes of Board and committee
meetings are circuiated to all Board members.

The Nen-executive Directors receive morithly managemeant accounts
ang regular management reports and information which enable
them to scruiinise the Group’s and management’s performance
against agraed objectives.

Shareholder relations and Annual General Meeting (“"AGM")
The Cormnpany recognises the importance of dialegue with all of
its shareholders. The AGM is an opporiunity {0 communicate with
institutional and other sharehoiders. The ouicome of the voting
on AGM resolutions i5 disclosed by means of an announcement
on the London Stock Exchange.

Additional information is supplied through the circulation of the
interim report andg the annual report 3nd accounts. Lombiard Risk
Management plc maintains up-to-date information on the investor
section of its website, www.lormbardgrisk.com.

Every sharehalder receives a full annual report after each year end

and has access to an interim report online after each half year end.
Care is taken to ensure that any price sensitive information is released
to all its shareholders, institutional and private, at the same time in
accordance with London Stock Exchange requirements.

Board committees

Audii. Committee

The Audit Committee is a committee of the Board chaired

by lohn McCormick and also comprises Philip Crawf{ord.

‘The Report of the Audit Committee can be found on page 24.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneraticrn Committea is 3 committee of the Board
chaired by Philip Crawford and also comprises John McCormick
and Steve Rogers. The Report of the Remuneration Commitiee
can be found on page 22 to 23.

Nominations Committee

‘The Directors do not consider that, given the size of the Board,
it is appropriate at this stage to have a Nomination Committee.
However, this will be kept under reqular review by the Board.

Risk Commitiee

As an aiternative to forming a Risk Committee, the Directors
consider matters relating to Group risk as part of the meetings
of the full Board and a Risk Ragister is maintained that is
reviewed by the full Board. The Risk analysis report can be
found on pages 14 to 15.
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Governance

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Group is run by its Board of Directors, which currently has six members,
including the Executive Chairman and three Non-executive Directors, and meets
regularly. The Non-executive Directors make a valuable contribution by bringing
a breadth of business and relevant professional experience to the Board.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group and there is a formal schediule of matters
specifically reserved for decision by the Board. It is responsibie for the overall Group strategy,
acquisition and divestment puolicy, corporate policies, approval of major capital expenditure
and consideration of significant capital matters.

Philip Crawford

Executive Chairman

Nigel Gurney

Chief Financial Officer

Nick Davies
Chief Technology Officer

Appeinted to the Board
May 2010

Committee membership

aod

Background

Philip Crawford joined the Board of
Lombard Risk Management plc in 2010. He
has been working in the IT industry since
1983. Philip has held a number of senior
positions ir software, hardware and
services companies inchiding senior

vice president of Oracle Corporation

with membership of the executive board
and Larry Ellison’s Strategy Council, president
of EDS International with respensibility for
all markets outside the US, chiel execuiive
of Bull UK and executive vice president and
nead of EMEA for i2 Technologies.

Since retiring from full iime eamployment

in 2002, Philip has concentrated on his
non-execuiive director gortfolio and acts
as.a "business angel”. He is currently the
chairman of Avanti Capital Plc and
Crimsonwing Pic as welt as being chairman
and investor in a small number of private
companies, mainly in the technology space.

Appointed to the Board
September 2014

Committee membership
None

Background

Nigel Gurney joined the Board of Lombard
Risk Management pic in September 2014
having joined the Group in July 2014 a5
Chief Financial Officer. He is 2 qualified
chartered accountant with over 20 years’
experience in the financial seivices,
telecommuinications and wholesale
distribution seciors. He previously served as
Chief Financial Officer of WH ireland Group
plc and Merchant Securities Group Plc and
wis 3 key member of the management
team that oversaw the sale of Merchant
Securities to the Sanlam Group.
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- Appointed to the Board

April 2010

Committee membership
Nore

Background

Nick Davies joined the Board ofLombard
Risk Management pic in 2010 having
jcined the firm in 2008 as the Groug’s CTO.
As CTO, Nick has global responsibility for
Lombard Risk Management plc's technical
vision as well as for the delivery and quality
of all software products. At Lombard Risk
Management plc Nick’s achievernents
inclide providing the architectural vision for
the re-architecture of the COLLINE®
Collateral Management platform to provide
additionai business resilience and processing
aapacity capabifities. Thase architecture and
design principles contributed to COLLINE®
winning its first Tier 1 enferprise client in
early 2009.

At JP Morgan he was the head of technoicgy
for thres global businesses: Globeclear,
Coliateral Management and Giobal Trust.
He oversaw the technical integration of the
hedge fund acqutisitions into the Alternative
Investment group and was rasponsible

for several high profile merger projects.

He was responsible for the technical teaims
that architected and implemented the

JP Morgan CommanD product servicing
OTC derivatives.



1 Audit committee

O Remuneration Committee

C Chairman of Commitiee

John Wisbey

Non-executive Director

John MicCormick
Senior Non-executive Director

Steve Rogers
Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board
January 1989

Committee membership
None

Background

John Wisbey served as the Chief Executive
Officer of Lombard Risk Managernent pic,
which he hag led since its launch in 1988
with the introduction of OBERON®, one of
the industry’s original software systems for
financial instrurnent valuation ang risk
management, until 18 May 2015 when he
became Non-executive Director. John
quided the Company’s arganic growth
through the creation and develcpment of
severai successful prodiscts, initiatiy
OBERON®, followed by ValuSpread, a credit
derivative data service (sold to Fitch in 2005),
COLLINE® for collateral management and,
mast recently ComplianceASSESSOR™ for
Compliance Monitoring. In addition, john
has been the principal architect of the
Company’s inorganic growth, which includes
the acquisitions of Gpen Image Systems in
1994 (later fioated on AIM a5 IDCX picin
2000) and STB Systems {naw the core of
Lombard Risk Management plc's regulatory
compliance business) in 2005 and the
REG-Reporier® business of SOFGEN in 2011.

Brior to estabiishing Lombard Risk
Managerent ple, John was head of option
trading and a director in the Swap Group
at Kleinwort 8ensen Limited.

Appointed to the Board
November 2013

Committee membership

goco

Background

John McCermick joined the Board in
November 2013. iohn's carear has been
mainly in banking, most recently sixteen
years ai Royal Bank of Scotland Group
(*KBS”} where from 2008 — October 2C13
he was chairman and CEO of R3S in

Asia Pacific, an organisation of 14,000
pecple at its peak. John was responsible
functionally for markets and international
banking activities across Asia Pacific -
ingia, Hong Kong, Taiwan, China, Malaysia,
indonesia, Thailand, Singapore, South Korea,
lapan and Australia, with a focus on debt
capital markets, risk management and
glotial transaction services. Follawing

the takeover of NatWest in March 2000,
lohn was appoinied globa! head of interest
rate derivatives and financial futures.

He oversaw the rapid and successiut
integration of these global business units
previousiy under the corporate umbrellas
of RBS, NatwWest GFivi and Greenwich
NatWest. fonn's eariier career included
thirteen years at Bank of America and a
pericd at Bank of irefand. At Bank of America
he managed the Bank of America EMEA
derivative business and formed partof a
triumvirate which managed the global
swaps ang derivative business in the 1990s.

Appointed to the Board
August 2013

Committee membership

o

Background

Steve Rogers joined the Board in August 2013,
He is head of sales for EMEA/LATAM at
Microsoft Business Solutions based in the
UK and was pravicusly general manager,
EMEA-Narth for Salesforce.com and
general manager, EMEA for SAP's business
chjects division as well as earlier positions
at Oracle UK and 1BM.
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REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Companias guoted on AiM are not required to provide a formal
remuneration report. Therefore this report is provided for inforration
purposes to give greater transparency to the way Directors and key
managament are remuneraied.

Composition and role of the Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee which currently
consists of Philip Crawford, Non-executive Chairman, who chairs
the commiitee, John McCormick, Senior Mon-execiitive Director,
and Steva Rogers, Norn-exacutive Directar. The comimitiee determines
the spedific remuneration packages for each of the Executive Directors
and key management. No Director is involved in any decisions as to
his own remuneration.

Framework and policy on Executive Directors’ remuneration
The Group’s remunaration policy is designed to provide competitive
rewards for its Executive Directors and kay management, taking into
account the parformance of the Group and individuai Executives,
together with comparisons of pay conditions throughout the markets
it which the Group operates. ILis the aim of the comimitiee to attract,
retain and maotivate high calibre individuals with a competitive
rernuneration package. It is cornmon practice in the industry for total
rermuneration to be infiuenced by bonuses and long-term incentives.

The remuneration packages are constructed to provide a balance
between fixed and variable rewards. Therefore remuneration
packages for Executive Direciors normally include basic salary,
discretionary bonuses, long-term incantive awards and herefits
in kind. In agreeing ihe ievel of basic salaries and annual bonuses
the committee takes into censideration the total remuneration
that Exacutive Diractors could receive.

Basic salary

Basic salaries are reviewed on an annuail basis. The committee
seeks to estabiish a basic salary for each position, determined

by individual responsibilities and performance taking into account
comparable salaries for sinilar positions in companies of a simifar
size in the same market.

22

Incentive arrangements

Annual discretionary bonuses

These are designed to reflect the Group's performance taking
into account the performance of its peers, the markets in which
the Group operates and the Executive Directors’ contribution

to that performance.

Long-term incentive awards
Tre Group operates an option scrieime for qualifying staff, including
Executive Directors. Options are granted over the Company’s
shares that are capable of vesting no earlier than the second
anniversary of issue. Yhe vesting pericd runs for two to ten years
from the date the options first vest. There are no other periormarice
conditions other than the vesting period. During the year ended

1 March 2015, options over 15,758,623 shares were awarded
to participating staff, of which 8,500,000 were awarded to
Executive Directers.

Other benefits

Depending on the terms of their contracts, Executive Directors
are entitled 1o centributions to pension plans, privaie madical
insurance, permanent health insurance and life assurance.

Service contracts and notice periods

All Executive Directors have employment contracts which are
subject to between three and twelve months notice from either
the Exacutive or the Group, qiven ai any lime.

Non-executive Directors

All Non-executive Directors have a remuneration agreemerit for
an initial period of twelve months and thereafier on a roiling basis
subject to three months’ notice hy either the Non-executive Director
or the Groug, given at any time.

In the event of termination of their appointment they are not
entitled to any compensatian.

Non-executive Directors’ fees are determined by the Executive Directors
having regard to the need to attract high calibre indiviguals with
the right experience, the time and responsibilities entailed and
comparative fees paig in the market in which the Group operaies.
‘They are not eligible for pensions. They may be invited to participate
in the Group's option scheme,
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Directors’ emoiuments

The remuneration of each Director during the year ended 31 March 2015 is detailed in the lable below:

Pension
Gain on Tatal Totai contribution
share option far year for year for year
oxercise ended ended ended
and similar 31 March 31 March 31 March
Salary Benefits Bonus benafits 2015 2614 2015
£000 £003 £000 £000 £000 £506 £500
Executive
john Wisbey 222 3 60 — 285 266 — —_
Nigel Gurney 76 1 —_ — 77 —_ 15 —
Nick Davies 142 — 80 — 222 537 24 24
Non-executive
Philip Crawford 45 — — — 45 45 — —
Jchn McCormick 30 — — — 30 13 — —
Stephien Rogers 30 — — — 30 19 —_— e
Total 545 4 140 — 689 880 39 24
Directors’ interest in performance share awards
full details of outstanding performance share awards in the Company held by Executive Directors at 31 March 2015 are shown below:
Date from
Share options AL start of year ice paid txercise price Atend of year wenich exercisahle fupiey dates
Nick Davies 2,000,000 — 11.0p 2,000,000 27/08/2013 27/05/2017
Nick Davies 2,000,000 — 13.00 2,000,000 27/08/2015 27/08/2G18
Nick Davies — — 14.0p 226,415 16/09/2¢17 16/09/2024
Nick Davies —_ — 14.0p 773,585 16/09/2016® 16/09/2019
Philip Crawford 2,400,000 — 4.5p 2,400,000 28/05/2012 28/05/2015
Philip Crawford 630,000 —_ S.5p 600,000 14/01/2013 14/0172G16
Philip Crawford 50¢,000 — 13.0p 500,000 24/07/2015W 24/07/2018
jchn McCormick 1,£00,00C — 13.0p 1,000,000 01/11/20150 01/11/2C18
Stephen Rogers 1,000,008 — 13.0p 1,000,000 15/08/2G15@ 15/08/2818
Nigel Gurney —_ — 13.0p 230,769 01/08/2017 31/08/2024
Nigel Gurney — — 13.0p 1,765,231 01/0872016@ 31/082019
lohn Wisbey —_ — 14.0p 5,500,000 16/09/20 16 16/09/2019

{1) Opiicns exercisabie 60% date swated, 20% one yeur fater and 20% two years ister.
{2) Cptions axercisabic 50% date swted, 25% one year ixter and 25% two years iater.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Membership and meetings of the Audit Committee

The Audit Commitiee is 3 comimitiee of the Board and is cormposed
entirely of Non-executive Directors, whom the Board considers te
be indepandent. The Audit Committea invites the Executive Directors
and other senior managers to attend its meetings as appropriate.

During the year the Audit Committee was chaired by Johrs McCormick.
The Audit Committee is considerad to have sufficient, recent and
relevani finandial experience to discharge its funciions. The Audit
Commnittee invites others, including the external auditor, te attend
its meetings as agprapriaie.

Role, responsibitities and terms of reference

The Audit Committee’s role is to assist the Board in the effective
discharge of iis respansibilities for finandial reporting and
internat control.

The Audit Committees responsibilities include;

ravigwing the integrity of the annual and interim {inandial

statements of the Group, ensuring they comply with legal

requiremenis, accounting standards and the AiM Rules and

any other formal announcements relating to the Group's

financial performance;

- reviewing the Group's internal financial control and risk
management systems,;

- monitoring and reviewing the raguirement for an internal
audit function; and

ovarseeing the jotship with the exiernal auditor, including
approval of its remuneration, reviewing the scope of the audit
engagement, assessing its independernce, monitoring the provision
of non-audit services and considering its reports on the Group's
financial statements.

g

independence of external auditor
The Audit Committee keeps under review the relationship
with the exiernal auditor incluging:

- the indepandence and cbjectivity of ihe exiernal auditor,
taking into account the relevant UK professional and requiatory
requirements and the relationship with the auditor as a whoie,
including the provision of non-audit services;

- recommending io the Board and shareholders the

re-appointment or otherwise of the external auditor
for the following financial pariod; and

- the consideration of audit fees and any fees for

non-audit. services.
The Audit Commitiee develops and recommends to tha 8oard the
Company's policy in relatien to the provision of non-audit services
by the auditor and ensures that the provision of such services does
not impair the external auditor’s independence,

24

Consideration of accounting errors

The Company’s finandial statemants for the year ended 31 March 2613
have been subject to a review hy the Conduct Committee of the
Financial Reporting Council ("FRC ™). This review identified that the
Compeny's accounting pelicy for the capitalisation and amortisation
of development costs was not in compliance with |AS 38 “Intangible
Assets”. A subseguent investigation ty the Company identified
additionat errors in the application of the Company’s accounting
policies for capitaiisation and amortisation of developnent costs.
The Audit Commitiee, in conjunction with the external auditer, has
reviewed the errors identified and the processes through which they
arose. As a result of this review, a number of disclosures, including
an explanation of how the errors had arisen, were made in the
interim report published on 15 October 2014 and these disclosures
are included again in these financial statements at naie 23.

The Audit Comimitiee has also reviewad the processes surrounding

the reporting of capitalisation and amortisation and is satisfieg that
ihe enhancements to the processes, along with additional controis

that the Company has put in place, are suificient to prevent further
occuirences of these errors,

John McCarmick
Chatrman of the Audit Committee
20 May 2015
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2015

The Directors submit their annual report together with the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report
and the financial statentents in accordance with appliceble law
and regulations.

Company law reguires the Di rs o prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected
1o prepare consclidated financial statemants in 3ccordance with
international Financial Reporting Stendards ("1FRS”) as adopted

by the Europaan Union and Pareni Company financial statements
in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{"UK GAAP"). Under campany 13w, the Directors must not approve
the financial statemients unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of ihe state of affairs and profit or loss of the
Company and Group for that pariod. In preparing these financial
statements, the Directors are required io:

- select suitable accounting policies and then agply thern consistently;
~ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicabie IFRS and UK GAAP have been ioliowed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concarn basis
uniess it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continte in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
recorgs that are sufficient 1o show and explain the Company's
transactions and that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial positicn of the Company and enabia them to ensure
that the financial statements compiy with the Companies Act 2006,
They are also responsibie for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

insoiar as each of the Direclors is aware:

- there is no relevant audit inforrmation of which the Company's
auditor is unaware; and

- the Diractors have taken all sieps that they ought 1o have taken
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of

the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s
vebsite. Legislation in the UK governing the preparaticn and

dissemination of financial staternents may differ from iegislation

in other jurisgictions.

Capital management

The Group generally saeks to finance all operationat finzncing
requirements through cash fiows generatag from operating
aciivities, although this may be supplemenied through capital
injections if mutually beneficial to the Group, current sharehoiders
and prospective investors. The Company’s aguily structure is set
out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Management's objectives with respect to managing capital include
maintaining sufficient capital tc enable the Group to impiement
its strategy going forward with an optimal level of extarnal debt.
Part of this strategy is to generate a positive return to investors,
both thirough dividend income and capital growth.

Results and dividends

The audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
are set out on pages 28 1o 53. Tha Group's profit for the year after
taxation amounted to £2.3m (2014: £5.2m). The Directors propose
a final dividend for the yaar of 0.45p (2014: 0.045p) per Ordinary
Share of 0.5p for a total dividend of 0.08p (2014: C.G75p).

Directors and their interests

The Direciors who served during the year and/or up to the daie of
this report and their beneficial interests in the Company’s Ordinary
Share capital were as follows:

31 March 31 March

2015 2C14

Number Number

John Wisbey* 100,627,617 100,627,617

Nick Davies 441,176 441,176
Philip Crawford 590,000 590,0C

John McCormick 5,076,756 9,175,756

Steve Rogers —_ —

Nigel Gurney 110,281 n/a

Y 77,339,567 shares are owned
‘fechnology Trust which ovns &
2 third paity.

+ iohn Wishey
,500 shares, 1t

in addition to these shareholdings, the Directors have been granted
opticns over Crdinary Shares.

in accordance with best practice, all Cirectors will retire at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and, being eligitile,
will offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS® REPORT con‘tinued
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Substantial shareholdings
As at 31 March 2015 the Company has been notified of the
following interasts in 3% or more of its issued share capital:

Auniber of shares %: hiolding
John Wisbey 100,627,617 38.1
Liontrust Assel Management 23,763,346 9.0
FiL Limited 19,464,398 74
Hargreave Hale Limited 16,241,443 6.2
Herald nvestment Trust 11,299,992 4.3
National Bank of Canada 11,032,222 4.2

Research and development

Research and development expenditure iricurred on the Group’s
suite of products has been capitaiised in iine with the Group's
accounting policy in the relevant period. Research and development
comprises analysis, design, programming and testing of software
solutions in both the Regulatory Compiianice and Risk Management
and Trading segments of the business. The Group wili continue

to invest in solutions to address new requiatory requiremants as
they arise and to take advantage of technological advances in the
underlying software platforms. Amounts not capitalised have been
axpensed to the consclidated statement of comprehensive income.

Going concern
The financial statemenis have, as in previcus years, been prepared
o1 a going concern basis.

The Direciors are reguired by the Companies Act 2006 to prepare
annuai accounts that give a true and fair view and, as part of this,
to decide if it is appropriate to prapare them en a going concern’
basis. In forming an opinion that the Company and the Group

is a going concarn, the Directors have taken particular note

of the trading performance in the year ended 31 March 2015.
This shows stability in the Group’s cash balance and continued
generation of Group profits.

26

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the period
ending 30 june 2016 which show that the Company and Group
have sufficient facilities for ongoing operations. Whilst there will
always remain some inherent uncertainty within the aforementioned
forecasts, the Direciors believe the Company and Group have sufficient
resources to continue in operational existence for at least twelve
months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

Accordingly the Direciors continue 1o adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015.

Financial risk management

The Group's multinational operations expose it to financial risks
that include markes, risk, credit risk, operational risk and liGuidity
risk. The Directors review and agree policies for manaqing each
of these risks and deiails of these risks and policies are set out:
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

A resclution to re-appoint Grant Thornton UK LLP as auditor
and to authorise the Directors to agree its remuneration will
be placed before the forthcoming AGM of ihe Company.

On behaif of the Board
Philip Crawford

Director
20 May 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Consolidated financial statements

Independent auditor’s report to the members

of Lombard Risk Management plc

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
tombard Risk Managament pic for the vear endad 31 March 2015
which comprise the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the Consolidated balance sheet, the Consolidated statement

of changes in shareholders’ equity, the Consolidated cash flow
statement and the related notes. The financial reporting framewaork
that has heen applied in their preparation is. applicable iaw and
international Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS®) as adepted
by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the Campany’s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our ausit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an Auditar’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume
responzibility to anyene other than the Company and the Compary’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
“opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement
set out on page 25, the Direciors are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit
and express an opinion on the consclidated financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s (“APB's”) Ethical Standards

for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements
is provided on the Financial Reporting Councii's website at
www.fre.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements
in our oginion the consolidated financiét staternents:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as
at 31 March 2015 and of its profit {or the year then ended;

— hava been progerly preparad in accordance with IFRS as adopted
by the European Union; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requiremenis of the
Cormnpanies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our oginion the information given in the Strategic report and
the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the consolidated
financial staiements are prepared is consisteni with the consolidated
financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to repert in respect of the following maiters

where the Comparies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,

in our oginion:

— certain disclosures of Directors’ reruneration specified by law
are not made; or

— we have not received all the information and explenations
we require for our audit.

Other matter

We hava reporied separately on tha Parent Company financial
statements of Lombard Risk Management plc for the year ended
31 March 2015.

Sirmon Bevan —_—
Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants

London

20 May 2015
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Year ended
3t March
2015
Note £500
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 21,491 20,395
Cost of sales (298) (164}
Gross profit 21,183 20,231
Adrninistrative expenses (18,915) (15,770}
Profit from operations 4 2,278 4,461
Finance expense 5 {24) (44}
Financa income 6 ! ?
Profit before taxation 2,255 4,419
Tax credit 7 {charge) 7 (2) 735
Profit for the year from continuing operations 2,253 5,154

Other comprehensive income

Items that may subsequently be reclassified to p}oﬁt and foss

Exchange differences on traaslating foreign operations:

Owners of the Parent 194 (185}
Non-controlling interest —_— e

Total compréhensive income for the year 2,447 4,569

Profit for the year from continuing operations attributable to:

Owners of the Parent 2,290 5,199

Non-controlling interest (37 (45)
2,253 5.154

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Parent 2,484 5014

Non-controlling interest (37 {45)
2,447 4,969

Profit per share

Basic {p} 8 0.87 2.07

Diluted (p) 8 0.86 2.04

The accompanying accounting poiicies and notes forrn an integral part of the financiat staternents.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 March 2015

As at As at
3t March 31 March
2015 2014
Cempany number: 03224876 Note £300 £200
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 322 206
Goedwill 11 5,881 5,751
Other intangible assets 11 14,361 11,044
Trade and other receivables 12 974 —
Deferred tax asset 7 1,048 997
22,586 17,998
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 12 6,791 5,767
Cash and cash equivalents 2,241 2,929
9,032 8,696
Total assets 31,618 26,694
Current liabilities
Borrowings 13 — (667)
Trade and ciher payables 14 (3,746} {2,685}
Deferred income (7,222) (5.171)
{10,968) (8,533)
Totai liabilities (10,968) {8,533)
Net assets 20,650 18,161
Equity
Share capital 16 1,750 1,747
Shara pramiuim acceunt 9,404 9,375
Foreign exchange reserves (87) (281}
Qther reserves 1,739 1,537
Profit and loss account 7,963 5,865
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent, 20,769 18,243
Non-controlling interest (119) (82)
Total equity ~ 20,650 18,161
The financia! staiements weie & f[grox i by the Board and authorised for issue on 20 May 2015 and sighed on iis behali by:
Philip Crawford
Executive Chairman
The accompanying accounting pelicies land notes form an integral part of the financial staterents.
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Towat
“vibutabie
0 he
frofi owness
Share QOrher and ioss of the Toial
<apitel reserves account Compeny eqiity
£000 £000 £000 £005 £000 £600
Balance at 1 April 2014 1,747 9,375 (281) 1,537 5,865 18,243 {82) 18,161
Issue of share capital 3 29 —_ — — 32 — 32
Previous R&D adjustment (note 23) — — — — 9 9 — 9
Share-based payment charge — — - 212 — 212 — 212
Share apticns lagsed or exercisad — — — (10} 10 — — —
Share options modification expernse — — — — — — — —
Dividends —_ — — — (211) (211) —_ (211}
Transactions with owners 3 29 —_ 202 {192) 42 —_ 42
Profit for the year — — —_ — 2,290 2,290 (37) 2,253
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations — — 194 — — 194 — 194
Total comprehensive income for tha year = — 194 — 2,290 2,484 (37 2,447
Balance at 31 March 2015 1,750 9,404 (87) 1,739 7,963 20,769 (118) 20,650
0 the
Fareign owners
Share exchange Qtner ot the Totai
cApIR resenves reservas 2 Compary equity
€000 £000 £000 £000 £000 €500 £600
Balance at 1 April 2013 1,592 6,622 {96} 1,687 751 10,556 (37) 10,519
Issue of share capital 155 2,846 — —_ — 3,001 — 3,001
Share issue costs — (93) — — — (93} — (93}
Shara-based payment charge — —_ — 67 — 67 —_— 87
Share options lapsed or exercised —_— — — 87 87 — — —
Share options rnodification expense {130) — (130} — {130}
Dividends — — — — (172) (172} — {172}
Transactions with owners 155 2,753 — {150) (85) 2,673 — 2,673
Prafit for the year — - — — 5,199 5,199 (45) 5,154
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translating ]
forsign cperations — — (185) — — (185) — (185)
Totai comprehensive income for the year —_ — (185) —_ 5,199 5,014 {45) 4,969
Balance at 31 March 2014 1,747 9,375 (281) 1,537 5,865 18,243 (82) 18,161

The share premiurn account rapresents amounis subscribed for shares that are in excess of the nominal value of the sharas. Foreign exchange
reserves represent accumulated exchange gifferences arising since the transition to IFRS from the translation of subsidiaries with a functional
currency other than Sterling. Other reserves relate 1o negative gcodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking prior to

1 April 1997, share-based payment and the merger reserve.

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an infegral part of the financial sistemens,
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Year ended

‘fear endad

31 March 31 March

2015 2014

£600 £200
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the yaar 2,253 5,154
Tax charge / {credit) 2 (735
Financa incame 4 @
Finance expense 24 44
Operating profit 2,278 4,461
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 210 284
Amortisation and impairment 1,806 1,226
Share-based payment charge 212 &7
increase in trade and other receivables (2,107) (2,383)
increase in trade and other payables 1,160 R74
increase in deferred income 2,051 895
Foreign exchange gains (8) (17)
Cash generated in operations 5,702 5,107
Tax (paic) / credit received {43) 125
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5,659 5,232
Cash flows from investing activities
interest received 1 2
Puichase of propearty, plant and equipment and computer software (369) (395)
Capitalisation of development costs (5,108) (5,333
Net cash used in investing activities (5.477) (5,726}
Cash fiov§s from financing activities
interest paid (24) (44)
Loans and other consideration paid {666) (1,013)
Sharas issued, net of issue costs 31 2,908
Shara optien consideration — (130}
Dividend paid (211) (172}
Net cash (used in) / generated by financing activities {870) 1,548
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (688) 1,055
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,929 1,874
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2,241 2,929
The accompanying accounting poiicies and notes form an integral part of the financial staterents.
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1. Accounting policies

(A) Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are for the y2ar ended 21 March 2015. They have been prepared in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS”) and {FRS interpretation Commitiee {(“IFRIC") interpretations as at 21 March 2015,
as adopted by the Eurcpean Union and also in accordance with those parts of the Comparies Act 2006 relevant to companies which
prepare finandial statements in accordance with RS, They have been prepared undar the historicai cost convantion.

Tre preparation of financial statements in accordance with iFRS requires the Board to make judgeraents, estimates and assumpticns
that affect the apglication of accounting policies, the reported amounts of talance sheet items at the period end and the regorted
amount of revenue and expense during the reperting pericd. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resulis of which form the basis
of making judgements that are not readily apparent from other sources. However, the actual resulis may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumpitions are reviewed on an engoing basis.

New standards, amendments and interpretations
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards, amencments and interpretations to existing standards
have been published but are not yet effeciive and have noi been adopied early by the Group.

Managerment anticipates that all of the pronouncements will be adopted by the Group’s accounting policies for the first period beginning
after the eflective date of the pronouncement. information on new standards, amendmenis and interpretations that are expected to be
relevant to the Group’s financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are
not expectad to have a meterial irmpact on the Group's financial ststements.
- IFRS 9 "Financial instruments” (effective 1 January 2618)
IFRS 9 addresses the dassification and measurement of finandal assets and will replace 1AS 39. The standard is mandatory for accouniing
periods cornmencing on or after 1 January 2018, subject to adoption by the European LUnion.

{B) Basis of consolidation

The Group accounts consolidate the financial statements of the Parent Company (Lombaid Risk Management pic) and its subsidiary
undertakings over which it has control (see note 5 to the Parent Company balance sheet). In accordance with IFRS 10, the Group considers
it has contiol over its subsidiary undertakings on the grounds that it has: existing righis over them that give it the ability to direci their
activities; rights 10 variable returns from its invoivement with them; and the ability to use its power aver them to affect the amount

of the Group’s returns. A description of the principal activities and operaticns of the Group can be found in the Directors’ report.

The consolidated financial staternents include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings made up o
31 March 2015, The acguisition method of accounting has been adopted. Under this method, the results of subsidiary undertakings
acquired or disposed of in the year are included in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income from the date of acquisition
or up 10 the date of disposal. At of the Group's assets and Habilities existing at the date of acquisition are recarded at their fair vaiues
reflecting their condition at that date. Profits or losses on intra-Group transaciions are eliminated in full. Goodwill is capitalised and
under IFRS 3 goodwill is not amortised but an impairment test is performed as approgriate, at least annually. The value of gocdwili

is to be written down according to the cutcome of the impairment test.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiarys profit or loss and net assets that is not
held by the Group. The Group attribules toial comprehensive income or loss of subsidiaries between the owners of the Parent and
the non-controlling interest based on their respective ownership interest.

{C) Segment reporting

in identifying its operating segments, management generally foliows the Group's product iines. The Group operates two main operating
segments: Regulatory Compliance software and Risk Manageiment and Trading software. Regulatory Compliance seftware is for regulatory,
arti-moneay laundering and comgliance systems to financial markets. Risk Management and Trading software provides trading, valuation
and risk management systerns to the financial markets. Each of these product tines is rnanaged separateiy as they each require different
technology and ather resources as well as marketing approaches. Corporate overheads, assets and liabilities which are not directly
attributable to either product line are not allocated to segments.

{D} Geing concern
Thie financial statements have, as in previcus years, been prepared on a gaing concern basis.

in forming an opinion that the Company and the Groug is a going concern, the Direciors have taken particular note of the trading
gerformance in the year ended 31 March 2015, both in the signing of new husiness contracts and in the realised financial resuits. These
show continued profitabitity and stability in the cash balance at 31 Maich 2015. The Directors have prepared a cash flow forecast for the
period to 30 June 2016, which shows that the Company and Group have sufficient facilities for ongoing cperations. Whilst there wili always
remain some inherant uncertainty within the aforerantioned forecasts, the Directors believe the Company and Group have sufficient
resources to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

Accordingly the Direciors confinue 1o adopi the geing concern basis in preparing the financial staternents for the year anded 31 March 2015,
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1. Accounting policies continued

{E) Ravenue

Revenue represents the fair value of goods suld and services provided during the year, stated net of value added tax. Revenue and profit
.pefore tax are wholly attributable to the principal activities of the Group.

The recognition of revenue depends on the iype of income:

ticence incorne For long-term projecis which do not include the up-front delivery of immediately usable sofiware,
revenue is recegnised on both the consultancy and initial licence elements in line with the estimated
percentace of comgletion of the project. This estirnation is based upon the views of the consuitants
implementing the projects as to the proportion of the project completed and this is suppoerted by data
from a time racording system. Annual licence/usage fees and maintenance revenue invoiced simultaneously
with the initial licence, but considerad to relate o the period when the licence is deemed to be live, is
deferred in its entirety until the live date, foliowing which it is refeased to profit in equel daily instalments
over the guration of the relevant licence or maintenance. For other projects which go include the up-front,
delivery of immediately usable software, revenue is recognised on a percentage corpletion basis.
For non-refundable licences, revenue is recognised in fuli on customer accepiance as thers are no
ongoing obligations in respect of such sales.

Customisation income Recognised once the customisation has taken place.
Mainienanca inceme Recognised evenly over the term of the mainienance contraci.
Rental income Recognised evenly over the term of the rental coniraci.

Data subscription income Recognised evenly over the term of the data contract.
Training income Recognised when the relevant courses are run.

Multiple element transactions are aliccated to relevant revenue categories based on tygical revenue splits for transactions which are
contracted separately and by using industry best practice.

{F} Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. No depreciation is charged during
the period of construction. Leasehold property is inciuded in property, plant and equipment only where it is held under a finance iease.

The cost of computer hardware, fixtures, fittings and equipment is written down to the residual value and is depreciated in equal annual
instalrnents over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The residual values of assets or groups of like assets and their useful lives are
reviewed annually.

The estimatad useful lives of the assets are as follows:
Cornputer hardware two years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment {our years

{G) Goodwill

Goodwiil, representing the excess of the cost of acquisition aver the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiatle net assets acgutired,
is capitalised and reviewed annually for impairment. Goodwill is carriad at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Negative goodwili is
recognised immediately after acquisition in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(H) intangible assets

Research and development

Exgenditure on research is recognised as an expense in the period in which ii is incurred.

Development costs incurred are capitatised when all of the foliowing conditions are satisfied:
- comgletion of the intangible asset is technicaily feasible so that it will be available for use or sale;

- the Group intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

- the Groug has the ability to use or sall the intangible asset;

- tha intangible asset will generate probable future econormic benefits. Among other things, this requires that thare is a market for the
output from the intangibie asset or for the intangible asset itself, or, if it is to be used internally, the asset will be used in generating
such benefits;

- there are adeguate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or seil the intanqgible asset; and

- the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Develcpment costs not meeting the criteria for capitalisation are expensed as incurred. Capitalised development costs are amortised
in equai annual instaiments over a period of five years from when the separately identifiable intangible asset is available for use in
the marner intended by managemeni Enhancements to 3 separately identifiatle intangible asset that is already available for use
in the manner originally intended by management are expensed as incurred.
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1. Accounting policies continued

(H) Intangible assets continuad

Computer software

The cosi of computer sofiware, net of estimated residual vaiue and impairment, is depreciated in equal annual instalmenits ovar one to
three years hased on the estimated useful lives of the assets. The residual values of assets or group of like assets are reviewad annuaily.

Customer relationships
The cost of customer relationships, net of estimated residual value and impairment, is amortised in egual annual instalments over nineteen
years based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. The residuat valies of assets or group of tike assets are reviewed annually.

Trademarks
The cost of trademarks, net of estimated residual value and inpairment, is amortised in equal annual instalments over seven years basad
on the estimated useful fives of the asseis. The residual vaiues of asseis or groups of ke assets are reviewed annualiy.

{l} Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the Group's balarice sheet when the Groug becomes 3 party to the contractuat grovisions
of the instrument. The Group finandial instrurnents cornprise cash, trade receivables, borrowings end trade and other payables. Derivative
instruments are nat used by the Group and the Group dees not enter into speculative derivative contracts.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are initially stated at their fair value plus transaction costs, then subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, if apolicable, less impairment fosses. Provisions against trade receivables are made when there is objective aviderice that
the Group will not be able to coliect ali 3mounis due 10 it in accordance with the original terms of those receivabies. The amount of the

write down is determined as the difference between the assets’ carrying arnount and the present velue of the estirnated future cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group manages shori-term liguidity through the holding of cash and highly liquid interest-bearing deposits. Only deposils ihai are
readily convertible into cash with maturities of three months or less from inception, with no penaity of lost interest, are shown as cash
of cash equivalents.

Trade payables

Financiat iiabilities are obligations to pay cash or eiher finandial assels and are recognised when the Group becames a party io the coniractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recorded at amertised cost using the effective interest method, with interest
refateds charges recognised as an axpense in finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income.

A financial liability is derecognised only when the obligation is extinguished, that is, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires,
(J) Foreign exchange

Transactions in: foreign currencies are transtated into the functional currency of the individual entity at the excharge rate ruling at the date
of the transaction. Moretary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are transiated at the rates of exchange ruiing at the balance sheet date.
Nor-monetary items thai are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated at the exchange rate 3t the date of the transaction.

Any exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items &t rates different from those

at which they were initially recorded are recognised in the profit or ioss in the period in which they arise. The assets and liabilities in the
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated into the Parent Comipany’s presentation currency at the rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheat date. Income and expensas are translated at the actual rate at the date of transaction. The exchange differences
arising from the reiranslaiion of the opening net investment in subsidiaries are recognised in other compreherisive income and iaken

to the “Foreign exchange reserve” in equity. On disposal of a foreign operation the cumulative iransiation differences (including,

if applicable, gains and losses on related hedges) are transferred to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

(K) Taxation

Current tax is the t2x currently payabie based on taxable profit for the year using rates and laws enacted/substantivaly enacted at the reporting
date. Current tax credits arise from the UK legislation regarding the treatment of certain qualifying research and develepment costs, aliowing
for the surrender of tax losses atiributable to such cosis in return {or 2 tax rebate.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differances using rates and laws enacted/substantively enacted at
the reporting date. Deferred iax is generally provided on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities and their
tax bases. However, deferred tax is not provided on the initial recognition of goodwill, nor on the initial recognition of an asset or liability
unless the related transaciion is a business combinaiion or aifects tax or acceunting profit. Deferred tax on temporary differencas assodiated
with shares in subsidiaries and joint ventures is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be contratied by the Group and
it is probable that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future. In addition, tax losses available to be carred forward as well as other
income tax credits to the Group are assessed for recognition as deferred tax assets.
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1. Accounting policies continued

(K) Taxation continued

Deferrad tax liabilities are provided in full, with no discounting. Defarred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is prohable that the
underlying deduciible temporary differences will be able to be offset against future taxable income. Curreni and deferred iax assets and
liabilities are calculated at tax rates that are expected to apply to their respective period of realisation, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or fiabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in the statement of comprehensive income, except
where they relate 10 items that ar2 charged or aredited directly to other comprehensive income or eguity, in which case the relaied deferred
tax is also charged or credited directly o other comprehensive income or equity.

(L} Leased assets
The Group does not hold any finance leases.

All ieases referred tc are reganded as operating leases and the payments made under them are charged to the statement of comprehensive income
on a straighit line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are spread over the term of the lease.

{M) Pension cosis

The Group operates & number of defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the schames are held separately from those of the
Group in independently adrinistered funds. The amount charged to profit or loss represents the contributions payable to the schernas
in respect of the accounting pericd.

(N) Share options issued to emplcyees

Ail goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share-based payment are measured at their fair values. Where empioyees
are rewarded using share-based payments, the fair values of employees’ services are determined indirectly by reference to the fair value
of the instrument granted to the employee. This fair value is appraised at the grant date using a binemial model, taking inte account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.

All equity-settled share-based payments are ultirnately recogrised as an expense in the staternent of comprehensive incorne witl a corresponding
credit to "other reserves”.

if vesting periods or othar non-market vesiing conditions apply, the expense is allocaied over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share opticns expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised if there is any indication that

the number of share options expectad to vest differs from previous estimates. Any cumuiative adjustment prior to vesting is recognised
in the current period. No adjustment is made to any expense recegnised in prior periods if share options ultimately exercised are different
1o ihat estimated on vasting.

Share options vest nc earlier than the second anniversary of issue. The vesting period runs for two to ten years from the date the optiens
first vest. There are no other perfermance conditions other than the vesting period.

Upon exercisa of shara options the proceeds received ret of attributable transaction costs are creditad to share capital ang, where approgriate,
share premium.

(O Impairment testing of gooswill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipmeni.

for the purpeses of assessing inpairment, assets are groupad at the lowest ievels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
{cash-generating units). As a result, some asseis are tesied individually for impairment andg some are tested at cash-ganerating unit level.
Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lswest javal within the Group at which management monitors the relsted cash flows.

Goodwill, other individual assets or cash-generating units that include goodwill, other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and
those intangible asseis not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually. All other individual assets or cash-generating
units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recagnised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverabie amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use based on an
internal discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which goodwill has been atiocated,
are cradited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assels in the
cash-generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, alf assels are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss
previously recognrised may no longer exist.
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1. Accounting policies continued

{P) Key judgements in applying the antity’s accounting policies and goodwill impairment

The Group's management makes estimates and assumptions regarding the future, Estimates and judgements are continually evalizted based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future evenis that are believed o be reasonable under the circumstances.

in the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a reasonable
risk of causing material agjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabitities within the next financial year are discussad below.

Recognition of revenue
Revenue is recognised aczording to the accounting policies as stated and is dependent upon the type of income. Where contracts include
different elements of revenue, those elements are reccgnised in line with those policies, with fair values attributed to each component part.

Judgement is used in the recognition of revenue from long-term projects.

i work is contracted on a fixed-cost basis, revenue is recognised in fine with an estimation of the percentage of completion ¢f the project.
This estimaticn is based upon the views of the consuitants implementing the projects as to the proportion of the project completed and
this is supporied by data from a time recording system. There is, however, an element of judgement involved that can impact the recognition
of revenue. This process and individual project recognition is reviewed regularly to ensure that, whilst stiil subiective, the refiection of revenue
is the best approximation possible.

Vhere projects include the up-front delivery of immediately usable sofiware, the element of non-refundable licence revenue is recognised
on receipt of the software hy the customer, with other revenue being recognised in line with the performance of the contracted services.
The unbundling of this contract revenua requires management 1o exercise judgement as to ihe relative fair vaiues of the component parts
of the contract.

Goodwill impairment

An impairment loss is recognised if the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. To datermine the recoverahle arnount, managernent astimates expected future cash fiows from each cash-generating unit

and determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. In the process of meastiring expectad
future cash flows, managernent rnakes assumptions about future operating results. These assumiptions ralate to future svents and circurmstances.
The actual results may vary and may cause significant adjustments to the Group’s assets within the next financiai year.

in mast cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment to market risk ang the appropriate
adjustment to asset-specific risk factors.

Capitalisation of development costs

Develocpment costs are capitalised when all of the criteria (see accounting policy note above) have bean met. Employees’ time is recorded
by product and activity and valued by reference 1o salaries and directly attributabie overheads. Values hy product are reviewed with reference
to future profitability.

Some judgement is used to determine which activities constitute developrment that should be capitalised. Likewise, some judgement is
required in assessing when a praduct hias reachad its intensed use and hence when capitalisation of associated costs should cease. In agdition,
iudgement is used to determine future profitability of the products and timing thereof.

Deferred tax assets

The assessment of the probability of future taxable income on which defarred tax assels can be utiiised is based on the Group’s latest
approved budget forecasts, which is adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expense. If a positive forecast of taxatle income
indicates the probable use of a deferrad tax assei, especially when it can be utilised without a time limit, thai deferred tax assei is usually
recognised in raspect of the periad for which future profits can be confidently foreseen. The recognition of deferred 1ax assets that are
subject to certain legai or economic fimit or uncertainties is assessed individually by managernent based on the specific facts and circumstances.
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2. Business segmentation

Management currently identifies the Group’s two proguct lines as operating segments as further descrited in the accounting policies.
These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions are made on the basis of segment operating results.

Segment information can be analysed as follows {or the reporiing periods under review:

Year endad
21 March
2015
£000
Revenue
Regulatory Compliance software 9,916 9,574
Risk Management and Traging software 11,575 10,821
Group unatioccated - —
Total revenue 21,491 20,395
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Regulatory Compliance scftware (1.202) (54%)
Risk Management and Traging software {914) (565)
Group unallocated - -
Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment {2,116) (1.510)
Net interest expense
Regqulatory Compliance software - -
Risk Management and Trading software — —
Group unailocated ' 23) (42
Total interest expense (23) (42}
Other costs
Regulatory Compliance soitware (3,089) (7.287)
Risk Management and Trading software (8,008) (7,137
Group unaiiocated —_ —
Total other costs (17,097) {14,424}
Total costs {19,236) {15,976}
Profit
Regulatory Compliance software (375) 1,742
Risk Managaement and Trading software 2,653 2,719
Greup unaliocated (23) (42)
Total profit before taxation and dividend 2,255 4,419
Net assets
Regulatory Compliance software 2,659 3,634
Risk Management and Trading software 13,746 11,083
Group unatiocated 4,245 4,034
Net assets 20,650 18,161
The two segmenis operate independantly and intersegment income or expenditure is cross charged at arm’s lengih.
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2. Business segmentation continued
The Group's revenuas from dlients and its non-currant assets are divided into the foliowing geographical areas:

Yeoar ended Year ended
3t March 31 March
2015 2034
£000 £G00
Revenue

United Kingdom 10,035 12,009
Rest of Curope, Middle East and Africa 3,367 2,692
The Americas 5,069 4,137
Asia Pacific 3,020 1.557
TJotal revenue 21,491 20,385

Non-~current assets
United Kingdom 14,116 10,726
The Americas 508 4638
Asia Pacific 59 56
Non-current assets 14,683 11,250

in the year ended 31 March 2015 10% (2014: 11%) of the revenue depended on a single customer within the Risk Management and

Trading software segment.

3. Directors and empioyees

R 2015 2014

Diraciors £600 £000
Emoluments 689 1,236
Social security costs 81 120
Pension costs 39 74
809 1,430

During the year two Directors accrued benefits under pension schames {2014: one}.

The Directors of the Company are the key management perscnnel. Details of the remuneration of each Director, pension entitiements

and shara options are included in the Remuneration report on pages 22 to 23.

2035 2014
Staf comts including Birectors £000 €200
Wages and salaries 13.464 11,893
Social security costs 2,467 2,228
Pension costs 147 134
Share-based payments charge (noie 17) 212 67
Total staff costs 16,290 14,222
Capitalised cosis (3,203) {4,109)
Total staff costs included in consolidated statement of comprehensive income 13,087 10,213
The average monthly number of empioyees (excluding Directors) during the year was:
2015 2014
Rimber Number
Office and adninistration 18 18
Operationat 265 251
Total 283 269
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4. Profit from operations

The profit from operations before taxation is stated after charging:

2015 2014

£000 £000
Auditor's remuneration — Company audit fee 25 25
Fees payable tc the Company auditer for other services:
- subsidiary company audit fees 24 4
- tax services 17 18
— othar services 2 7
Depreciation 210 i85
Amortisation and impairment 1,906 1,325
Foreign exchange loss 12 41
Operating leases — land and buildings 1,440 1,333
Research and davelopment expenditure 2,427 1,796
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor, Grart Thornton UK LLF, and its associates for non-audit services to the Company itself are not
disclosed in the individual financial statements of the Cornpany because the Company’s Group financial staiernents are required by the
Companies (Disclosure of Auditor Remuneration and Liability Limitation Agreements) Regulations 2008, Regulation 5(1) to disclose such
fees on a consolidated basis.
5. Finance expense

201S 2014

£000 £400
interest on bank loans and overdrafts 24 44
6. Finance income

2015 2614

£000 £000
interest on bank deposits 1 2
7. Taxation
{A) Analysis of charge in the period

2015 2614

£000 £200
Current tax:
- UK corporation tax on profits in the period — (222}
- foreign tax on profits in the pericd 53 S)
Totai current tax charge / (credit) 53 (227}
Deferred tax:
- origination ang reversal of timing differences {51) (50%)
Total deferred tax credit 51) {508}

2 (735}

Taxation charge / {credit) on ordinary activities

(B) Research and development tax credits

The Group has received to date research and development tax credits of £1,038,000 (2014: £1,038,000). As for all companies that have
received these cradits, the amounis are subject to potential future HM Revenue & Customs claw back.
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 March 2015

7. Taxation continued
(C) Tax on profit on ordinary activities
The tax assessed for the pericd is the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 21% (2014: 23%). The difference is explained as follows:

2G1S 2014
£000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2,255 4,419
Profit on ordinary activities muitiplied by the standard rate of corperation tax in the UK of 21% (2014: 23%) 474 1,616
Effect of:
- net utilisation of tax losses (59) (1,766)
— enhanced R&D relief (471)
- expenses not deductibie for tax purposes 5 20
~ foreign tax credits 53 5
Current tax charge / (credit) charge for the period 2 (735}
(D) Unrecognised deferred iax
A deferred tax asset of £1.5m (2014: £2.0m) is unrecognised and relates principally to trading losses carried forward.
{F) Deferred tax asset
The deferred tax asset included in the baiance sheet relates principally to the carry forward of tax losses.
2015 2004
£000 000
Deferred tax asset 1,048 947

The Directors have recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of carried forward trading tax losses as, based on current estimates, the Group
is forecast to make sufficient trading tax profit in the future against which these losses can be offset. The recognised deferred tax asset

is based on expected profits in the next financial year. The movement in the deferred tax asset in the year is recognised in full in the profit
for the year; no amount is recognised directly in equity.

The deferred tax asset is expected to ciystailisa in fuil in the next financial year.
8. Profit per share

Basic profit par share has been caiculated by dividing the profit after taxation by the weighted average number of Qrdinary Shares in issue
during 2ach pericd.

For dilutad earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares, 263,451,123 (2014: 251,717,005), is adjusted to asstime conversion
of all dilutive potential Crdinary Shares under ihe Group's share opiion plans, being 3,387,680 (2014: 3,051,314), to give the diluted weighied
number of shares of 266,878,203 (2014: 254,768,319).

Profit per share

Year ended Year endad

31 March 31 Moarch

2015 2014

£300 £000

Profit for the year and basic and diluted earnings atiributable to owners of the parent £2.290m £5.199m
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares 263,495,411 251,717,005
Profit per share (p) 0.87 2.07
Adjusted weighted average number of Ordinary Shares 266,914,919 254,768,319
Diluted profit per share (p} 0.86 2.04
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9. Non-controlling interest
The non-coniroiiing interest relates to 20% of Lombard Risk Compliance Policies Limited, whose principal place of business is in the

United Kingdom, that is owned by a third party. The proportion of voting rights heid by non-controlling interests is 20%. The loss for

the year allocatad to the non-conirofiing interests is £38,000 (2014: £45,000). The accumuiated non-controlling interest at the end
of the year are £120,000. For the year ended 31 March 2015, Lombard Risk Compliance Policies Limited recorded a net loss before
tax of £197,000 and had net liabilities of £600,000.

10. Property, plant and equipment

Computer

hardvwiare Total
Group £000 500
Cost
At 1 April 2013 1,451 71 2,222
Additions 169 10 179
Foreign exchange effect (44) (28} (72}
At 31 March 2014 1,576 753 2,329
At 1 Aprit 2014 1,576 753 2,329
Additions 192 125 317
Foreign exchange effect 61 34 35
At 31 March 2015 1,829 912 2,741
Depreciation
At 1 April 2013 1,301 700 2,001
Charge for the year 155 30 185
Foreign exchange effect (39) (24) (63)
At 31 March 2014 1,417 706 2,123
A1 Aprit 2014 1,417 706 2,123
Charge for the year 174 36 210
Foreign exchange affeci 55 31 86
At 31 March 2015 1,646 773 2,419
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 183 139 322
At 31 March 2014 159 47 206
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 March 2015

11. Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill

Group

Cost

ALY Aprit 2013 5,848
Additions -
Foreign exchange efiect 97)
At 31 March 2014 5,751

AL Aprii 2G14 5,751

Additicns —
Foreign axchange effect 130
At 31 March 2015 5,861

Amortisation

At 1 Aprii 2013 —
Provided in the period —
impairment —
Foreign exchange effect —_

At 31 March 2014 —
At April 2014 .

Provided in the period —
Foreign exchange effect —
At 31 March 2015 —
Net book vatue

At 31 March 2015 5,881
AL 31 March 2014 5,751

The goodwill at 31 March 2015 relates o the acquisition of STB Systerns Limited, since renamed Lombard Risk Compliance Limited,
which was acquired in 2005 ang which canstituted the Group's regufatory comgdiance business, and to goadwill arising in 2011 relating
to the acquisition of the requiatory reporting business of SOFGEN. Both these businesses now represent the Group's regulatery compliance
Business. An impairment review has therefore been carried out on this cash-generating unit.

The cash-generating unit has bean assessed by comparing its carrying value to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use tased on an internal discounted cash flow evaluation.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the cash-generating unit recoveratle amount was seterminad tased on value-in-use calculations, which
are based on detailed five-year discounted forecast cash flows (using a discount rate of 10%;. Cash flows for the regulatory cornpliance
business are based on managementi forecasts, which are approvad by the Board and reflect management’s axpectations of sales growith,
operating costs and marqin based on past experierice as weli as the current order book. Management has used a five-year period in the
cash flow prajections as the regulatory compliance business experiences 3 low tevel of customer turnaver and the technnlogy is based on
regulations which, whilst subject to periodic amendment, are unlikely to be withdrawn.

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions: impairment testing is dependent on management’s estimates and judgements, in particular
in relation to the forecasting of future cash flows and the discount rate applied to the cash flows. Management has concluded that no
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would cause the carrying value of goodwill to exceed its recoverable account.
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11. Goodwill and other intangible assets continued

Other inlangible assets

“anitshised Toial as
tffect of daveinpment previously Toial as

stated restarement  COSES as restated stated restatad
froup £000 £000 €000 £000 000
Cost
As 1 Aprit 2013 1,047 7,596 {568) 7,028 8,643 8,G75
Additions 216 5,333 —_ 5,333 5,549 5,549
Foreign exchange efiect [CY) (57) 57)
At 31 March 2014 1,206 12,929 {568) 12,361 14,135 13,567
Ai 1 Aprit 2014 1,206 12,929 {R€8) 12,361 14,135 12,567
Additions 52 5,109 — 5,109 5,161 5,161
Foreign axchange effect 76 e e e 76 7
At 31 March 2015 1,334 18,038 (568) 17,470 19,372 18,804
Amortisation
At 1 Aprit 2013 4860 §.315 (577} 738 1,775 1,198
Provided in the period 160 741 — 741 901 981
Impairment — 424 — 424 424 424
Foreign exchange effect )] — — — 9 9
At 31 March 2014 611 2,480 (577} 1,903 3,091 2,514
At 1 Aprit 2014 611 2,480 (577) 1,903 3,091 2,514
Provided in the pericd 187 1,719 - 1,719 1,906 1,806
Foreigh exchange effect 23 — — — 23 23
At 31 March 2615 821 4,199 (577) 3,622 5,020 4,443
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 513 13,839 g 13,848 14,352 14,361
AL31 March 2014 595 10.449 9 10,458 11,044 11,053

Capitaiised development costs reflect the expenditure attributable to the development of new technology that wili provide economic
venefitin future periods as sei cut in note 1{H). The Group's development costs relate to the Group's products, inciuding COLLINE®,
ComplianceASSESSOR, REFORMT™, MIS reporting, etc. The COLLINE® suite of products is individually significant; the net book value at

31 March 2015 is £4,502,000 {2014: £3,623,000). Amortisation is over 3 five-year period iroim the time when each separately identifiable

intangible asset within the suite of produdis reaches its intended use by managament. The remaining amortisation period for the COLLINE®
suite of prodiicts varies accordingly and can be summarised as follows: four to five vears: £3.9m; two to four years: £0.4m; up {o fwo
years: £0.2m.

One of the Risk Management products was identified as impaired following a review of the carrying values of capitalised development
costs during the year ended 31 March 2014. The product forms part of the Group’s Risk Management and Trading scftware ogerating
segment. The net carrying value of the product was therefore written down to £300,000, resuiting in an impairment charge of £424,000
which was inciuded in the Administrative expenses line of the statement of comprehensive income. The review was carried out as part
of the annual review of the carrying value of ali intangible assets. This review involved a consideration of the recoverable amount of

the ascet, being the higher of fair vaiue, reflecting rnarket conditions less costs to seli, and value in use based on an internat discounted
cash flow evaluation. Where the recoverable amotint was considerad to be lower than the net carrying value, an impairment charge

has been applied. The result of the review identified that future cash flows anticipated frorn the aforementioned asset are lower than
had previously been expected and hence the asset has been written down to its recoverable amount by reference to vaiue-in-use
calcuiations. These calcuiations were based cn discounted cash fiows using a discount rate of 10%.

Tha restatement of capitalised development costs followed a review hy the Conduct Committee of the Financial Reporting Council.
Further details of this review are sei out in note 23.
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 March 2015

12. Trade and other receivables

2015 2014
£000 £90¢
Current
Trade receivables 3,726 2,836
Qther receivables 522 430
Prepayments - 835 418
Accrued income 1,708 1,883
6,791 S, 767
Non-current
Accrued income 974 —
974 .-

The current amouris are shert term and the Directors consider that the carrying amaunt of these trade and other receivables agproximates
to their fair value. The nen-current amounts are due within two to five years and are stated at fair value, determined by discounting
fisture receipis at the rate of interest that discournts the nominal smounis receivabile 1o the current ¢ash sales price of the goods sold.

Al of the Group's trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indications of impairment. As at 31 March 2015, trade receivables
of £3.7m (2014: £2.9m) were fully recoverabie. An impairment provision of £0.15m (2014: £0.13m) has been imade againsi the invoices
of eleven clients (2014: nineteer: clients). in addition, some of the unimpaired trade receivables are past due as of the reporting date.
Trade receivables past due but net impaired are as follows:

2015 2014

£600 £000

Not more than threa months past due 1,346 167
More than three months but not more than six months past due 382 39
More than six raonths but less than one year past due — 139
More than one year past due — 1
1,738 346

All other receivabies (non-trade) are not past due.

pMovements in Groug provisions for impairment of trade receivables, as inciuded in adminisirative expenses, are as follows:

2015 2014
£800 €000
Opening halance 134 39
Movement in provision for receivables 16 95
Ciosing balance 150 134

The Group operaies in a global market with income arising in a number of different currencies, principally Sterling, Euros or US Doffars.
Other than-natural opportuniiies to hedge, the Group does not hiedge potential futtre income, sinze the existence, quantum and timing
of such income cannot be accurately predicted.

44 Lombard Risk Management pic Annual report and accounts 2015



13. Borrowings

2015 2034
£C00 £200
Bank loans payable within one year — 657

All the borrowings were repaid during the financial year under review and there is no outstanding balance at 31 March 2015.
Borrowings 3t 31 March 2014 comprised & Sterling bank loan.

The Starling bank loan was repayabie in equal querterly instalrnents over & thrae-year term with the first repayment in April 2012. The foan principal
was £2.0m and interest was payable at the rate of LIROR + 4%. There is no balance outstanding at 31 March 2015 {2014: £0.7m).

14. Trade and other payables

2015 2018

£600 £000

Trade payables 204 741
Other taxes and social security costs 1,906 1,305
Accruals and other payables 936 649
3,746 2,695

15. Financiat risk management and financial instruments

The Group’s multinational operations expose it to financial risks that include market risk, credit risk, operational risk and liquidity risk.
The Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. These poiicies have remained
unchanged from previcus years.

Market risk

Markat risk for the Group encompasses all those market risk factors that impact the velue of the Group’s assets and liabilities and the axpected
value in base currency of the Group’s revenues and costs. The main risk {actors are currency risk, inflation risk and interest rate risk.

The Group's policies for managing these are as follows:

{) Currency risk
The Group is exposed {o iranslational and transactional foreign exchange risk 2s it operates in various currencies, including US Dollars,
the Eure, Chinese Yuan, Hong Kong Dollars and Singapore Dollars, which affect the management and levels of werking capital.

Mitigation: Althiough, through its own software, the Group has accass to sophisticated mededs for the management of foreign exchange
risk, there has historically been no use of foreign exchange derivatives to manage this position on the basis that the overall effect on the
Group's income statement has not been {arge enough (o warrant the management, costs and margin raguirements of this activity.

The Group does use natural hedges where the appropriate opportunity arises. in addition, the Group prepares working capital forecasts
that incorporate sensitivity analysis on axchange rate fluctuations. The Group's main ongoing transactional exposure is to be long of
Eure and US Dolars through Euro and US Dollar income exceeding expenditure in those currencies and short of Chinese Yuan through
axpenditure exceeding income in that currency.

1) Infiation risk

The Group has exposure to the inflationary eifect in countries in which it oparates, offset by its ability t raise prices in thase countries
in which it sells. This exposure could affect the Group's cost base. The Group’s cost base is mainly exposed to the inflation rates end
changes in payroll taxes in the UK, the US and China,

Mitigation: The infiation rate for salaries in specialised parts of the finandial sactor in 2 financial centre such as London, New York or Shanghai
is nften different from the relevant country's overall rate of wage inflation. Salary inflation in these markets and internally is menitored.
No specific hadging of infigtion risk has been carried out.

itf) interest rate risk
interest rate risk arises primarily on the invesiment of the Group’s cash balances or on its borrowings ang the present value of the Group's
receivables. in particular, interest on the Group's borrowings is affected by LIBOR.

Mitigation: The Group finances its operations through retained cash reserves and overdraft facilities. The policy of the Group is to menitor
exposure 1o interest rate risk and take into account potential movernents in interest rates as well as liquidity considerations when selecting methods
of financing.
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 March 2015

15. Financial risk management and financial instruments continued

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a third party might fail to fuifil its performance obligations under the terms of a financial instrument. For cash
and cash equivalents and trade and other raceivables, credit risk represerits ihe carrying amount on the balance sheet.

Mitigation: Most of the Group's business is with banks, asset ranagement firrs and other high-quality companies and the Group's bed
debt experience over fifteen years has been negligibie. The Group consequently has not considerad taking out credit insurance 3ad is noi
fikely to do so in the foreseeable future. Deposits are placed with high-quality banks. The Group closely monitors its credit risk.

There has been no use of credit derivatives to mitigate counterparty risk and no such use is contemplated.

The Group$ exposure to credit risk & fimited to the ¢arrving amount of financial assefs recognisats 3t the balance sheat date, as surmmarised below:

2015 2014
Classes of finandial assets - carrying amounts £300 £600
Cash and cash equivalents 2,241 2,229
Trade and other receivables 6,930 5,349
Categorised as loans and receivables 9,171 8,378

Operaticnal risk

The Group has nurmerous operational risks, ranging from centrot over bank accounts 1o its processes for delivering and supporting software
1o a required level of quality and on 3 timely basis and reiention and recruitment of key personnel. A key risk, as for any group, is the
reputational risk that nught arise from poor executicn, non-delivery or late delivery of a high profile project or breach of client confidentiaiity
for sensitive data. Further risks may arise where laie delivery of sofiware or unitimely detivery of related senvices cause a client to miss
regulatory deadlines.

Mitigation: The Group's Audit Committee reguiarly reviews controls over certain aspects of the operations of the Group. In adgition,
the Audit Comrittee maintains an operational risk reqgister. Such a detailed operational risk review is ouiside the scope of this report
but the Board attaches importance to maintaining appropriate internal controls to identify and limit these risks; this includes integrated
project management across all functions of the business.

Liquigity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of loss from not having access to sufficient funds to meet both expectag and unexpected cash demands.
Mitigation: The Group seeks to rmanage financial risk by ensuring that sufficient liquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs and

by investing cash assets safely as well as profitably. The Group’s working capital repart, produced each month, shows foracast monihiy
movernents in working capital and cash for the following year. When reguired the Group has a short-term overdraft facility which at
the vear end has not been used. At 37 March 2015 the Group’s financial Hiabilities were as follows

2015 204
£500 £000
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 2,810 1,390
3orrowings — 667
Categorised as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 2,810 2,057

46 tombard Risk Management pic Annual report and accounts 2015



15. Financial risk management and financial instruments continued
Matiurity analysis
At 31 March 2018 the Group's liabiities have contracied maturities which are summarised helow:

2018 2014

Up ta Qne to Up e Onetn

ane year five years nne year five years

£000 £000 £00¢0 £C00

8ank borrowings — — 667 —
Trade and other payables 4,248 —_ 1,380 -
Tota! 4,248 — 2,057 —

The above contractual maturities reflect the payment cbligations which may differ from the carrying value of the liabilities at the balance
sheet date.

interest rata sensitivity

The Group has limited risk te interest rates (“LIBOR") changes due to less horrowings cutstanding during the year under review.

The borrowings are detailed in noie 13.

The following table iftusirates the sensitivity of profit and equity to a reasonably passible chiange i interest rates ("LIBOR") of +1% or -1%.
These changes are considered to be reasonably passible based on observations of current markel conditions. These calculations are bases
on a change in the average market interest rate for each period and the financial instruments held at each reporting date that are sensitive
to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant.

Profit tor the year Equity
£00C £C00 £300 £600
LIBCR +1% -1% +1% 1%
31 March 2015 2,206 2,218 20,603 20,615

Capital nranagement

The Group's capital managemant objeciives are to ensure the Group ability to continue as a going concern and to provide a return

to shareholders. The Group monitors capital in proportion to risk and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characieristics of the underlying assets. In order 1o mainiain or adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group has adopted a progressive dividend policy
and is praposing 3 13% increase in the full vear dividend, which is supportes by dividenid cover of 9.8 times.

The Group had bank borrowings of £Nif as at the year end. During the year the Group entered intc a £2.5m Revolving Loan Agreement
with Barclays Bank Plc at @ margin of 3.85%. There were no amounts owing under this agreement at the end of the finandial year. In ling
with the terms of that facilily the Groug monitors capital on the basis of twa covenants in place ovar the debt, being:

- iotal net debt to adjusted EBITDA,; and
- adjustad EBITDA to net finance charge.

All covepants wers satisfied at 31 March 2015.
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16. Share capital

20615 2054
£000 £300
Authorised
714,034,085 Ordinary Shares of 0.5p each (2614: 714,034,085) 3,570 3,570
Allotted, called up and fully paid
263,911,260 Ordinary Shares of 0.5p each (2014: 263,366,260} 1320 1,317
429,823,575 deferrad shares of 0.1p eacti (2014: 429,829,57%) 430 430
1,750 1,747

The deferrad shares carry no rights to receive dividends or 1o participate in any profits of the Company. The sharehoiders are not entitied
e atfend any meetings of the Camgany of have any rights io participate in any return of capital (except on 2 winding up). The deferred
shares are not transferable other than with the consent of all the Directors of the Company.

Ordinary Shares of 0.5p 2ach in issue at 1 Aprif 2014 263,366,260
Share opticns exercised 545,000
Ordinary Shares of 0.5p each in issue at 31 March 2015 263,311,260

There was no movement in the number of deferred shares during the yeer.

Share issue

On 8§ Cecember 2014, the Company issued 250,000 Ordinary Shares of 0.5p per share as part cf {he Company’s share option scheme,;
further details are provided in note 17. The shares were issued at a premium of 5.0p per share, which has been credited to the share
premium account.

On 26 lanuary 2015, the Company issued 145,000 Ordinary Shares of 0.5p per share as part of the Company’s share option scheme;
furthiar details are provided in note 17, The shares were issued at a premium of 5.5p per share, which has been credited o the share
premium account.

On 9 Fabruary 2015, the Comgpany issued 150,600 Qrdinary Shares of 0.5p per share a3 pari of the Company’s share option scheme;
further details are provided in note 17. The shares were issued at a premium of 5.5p per share, which has been credited to the share
premium account,

17. Share aptions
Emplioyee share options charge
The fair value is based on a number of assumptions as stated below.

in accordance with the accounting policy staled under note 1N}, the volatility of the Company’s shares for the relevant period has
been estimated at 30% historicaily, and for the year under review between 21% to 36% to reflect the current market situation, giving
a charge to profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 of £211,667 {2014: £66,906), with the same amount being credited to
reserves. The expecied volatility has heen based on histerical volatility, historically using market prices of Lombard Kisk Management plc
shares between 4 September 2004 and 31 March 2010, giving 30%. For the year under review, volatility is calculated using past year
share price at the date of share option issued, giving a volatiiity between 31% to 36% for various share option issued; for details see below.

Equity-settled share-based payments

The Company has three share option scheme for all employees. Options are granted to emplcyees based on the discretion of the Directors
to reward performance. The options ar2 settled in equity once exercised. if the options remain unexercised after the end of the exarcise
period, the options expire. Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Company.

tUnder the approved ard unapproved optien schemes the Remuneration Committee can grant options for empioyees of the Group.
Options are granted with 3 fixed exercise price which is typicaily issued at or ai a premium to the rnarket price. The contractual life

is between five and ten years from the date of grant. Options become exercisable after twa or three years. The vesting peried runs

for two to eight years frorn the date the options first vest. There are no other performance conditions other than the vesting period.
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17. share options continued
Equity-setiled share-based payments continued
The fair vaiues of the options were calcuiated using a numerical binomial mede! assuming the inputs shown belov:

At staig t apsed/ Atend Exarcise price Exercise date Exercise

of yesr Granted Recigssified Exercised weived of year (o) from date (o

2004 EMH 1,500,000 — — (295,000} — 1,205,600 6.00 October 2011 October 2016

Scheme 520,000 — —  (250,000) — 270000 550  January 2013 January 2016

1,000,000 — — — — 1,000,000 12.00 April 2015 Aprii 2018

Unapproved 2,400,000 — — —_ — 2,400,000 4.50 May 2012~ May 2015
Scheme May 2014

800,000 — — — —_ 800,000 5.5C January 2013 January 2016

500,000 — — — — 500,000 12.00 Aprit 2014 Aprii 2017

800,000 — — — —_ 900,000 12.00 May 2014 May 2017

2,000,000 — — — — 2,000,000 11.00 August 2013 July 2017

1,303,012 — 2,000,000 —  {913,012) 2,390,000 13.0C July 2015 july 2018

2,868,676 - (2,000,000} {60R,676) 260,000 13.00 Jily 2016 July 2018

1,700,000 — — — — 1,700,000 13.0C August 2015 August 2018

1,080,000 e e e 1,050,000 13.00 Augusi 2016 August 2018

250,000 — — — — 250,000 13.00 August 2017 Auqust 2013

500,600 e 500,000 13.00  November 2015 Novemiber 2018

250,000 — —_ — — 250,000 13.00 November 201¢ November 2018

250000 0 e e e e 250,600 13.00  November 2017 November 2018

2,000,500 — — — (2,008,000} —_ 14.00 January 2016 January 2019

530,422 530,422 12.00 May 2016 May 2019

— 265,211 — — —_ 265,211 12.0¢ May 2017 tay 2018

----- 265,211 265,211 12.00 May 2018 May 2019

— 360,844 — — — 360,844 12.00 farch 2016 March 20149

180,422 180,422 12.00 March 2017 farch 2019

— 180,422 — —_ — 180,422 12.00 March 2018 March 2019

----- 884,615 884,615 13.00  Septamber 2016 August 2019

— 442,308 — — — 442,308 " 13.00 September 2017 Auqust 2019

- 442,308 442,308 13.00 September 2018 August 2013

— 5,220,520 —_ — — 5,320,520 1400 September 2016 September 2019

----- 2,660,260 - 2,660,260 14.00 September 2017 September 2019

— 2,660,260 — — — 2,660,260 14.00 September 2018 Septernber 2019

CSOoP 3,428312 (350,600} 3,078,312 12.06 March 2017 Merch 2024

Scheme — 589,156 — — — 589,156  12.00 April 2017 Aprii 2024

----- 230,769 230,769 13.00 Septembter 2017 August 2024

— 1,258,960 — —_ — 1,258,960 14.00 September 2017 Septernber 2024

208,623 208,623 14.38 january 2018 Iznuary 2025

23,220,000 16,480,311

(545,000) (3,871,685) 35,283,623
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17. Share options coniinued
Equily-setiled share-based paymenis coniinued
Details of share options granied during the year are as follows:

Apri May September Septernher September Septerniner January

004 20%4 w4 2034 Yy 2014 2018
Skare price at grant 10.21p 10.55p 13.0p 13.0p 13.25p 13.25p 14.38p
Exercise price 12.0p 12.0p i2.0p 12.0p 14.0p 13.Cp 14.38p
Contractual iife (years) 7 5 5 7 7 5 10
Staff turnover 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
Risk-free rate Discount curve used for UK on the day of valuation
Expected volatility 35.75% 31.71% 33.85% 33.85% 33.93% 33.93% 32.13%
Expected dividend yieid — —_ — — — — —
Fair value of option 4.37p 2.6%p 3.85p S.14p 5.75p 3.64p 5.55p

Details of the number of shara options and the weighted average exercise price ("WAEP”) outstanding during the year are as foliows:

2015 2015 2014 2014

Number WAEP Number WAEP

Ouistanding at beginning of the year 23,220,000 10.88p 17,750,000 6.16p

Granted during the year 16,480,311 13.60p 15,359,000 12.63p

Exercised during the year {545,000) 577p {7,320,0C0) 5.27p

Lapsad during the year (3,871,688) 13.43p {2,560,000) 10.17p

Outstanding at end of the year 35,283,623 11.86p 23,220,000 10.88p
Exercisable at the year end 8,075,000 6,420,600

The weighted average remaining contractua! life of share options outstanding at the year end was 5.3 years (2014: 2.3 years).

18. Operating leases )
The Group had commitmenis under nonancetlable operating leases in respect of land and buildings. The Group’s future minirum operating
lease payments are as follows:

2615 2614
£000 £000
Within one year o less 866 1,007
Within one to five years 4,055 390
More than five years 1,347
Total 6,268 1,397

During the year, the Group entered into new operating leases in respect of fand and buildings in both London and New York. The lease
on the London office expires in September 2021 and that on the New York office expires in June 2022.

19. Pensions

A Group company contributes to a defined contribution pension scheme on behalf of a linuted number of employees of that subsidiary.
The assats of the scheme are administered by trusiees in a fund independent of the Commpany. Other defined contribution pension schemas
to which the Group rakes contributions on behalf of empioyees are of the stakeholder variety, again totally independent of the Company.

20. Related party transactions
Other than as stated below, there are no related party transactions in this reporting year or comparative periad.

Key managerment of the Group are the Direciors of the Parent Company. The aggregate dividends paid to Directors in the year were
£89,000. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 3 and in the Remuneration Committee report.
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21. Controlling personnel related parties
in the opinion of the Directors, thera was no ullimate contrelling party at 31 March 2015.

22. Dividends
During 2015, Lombard Risk Management pic paid a dividend of £210,693 (2014: £171,6386) to its eguity shareholders. This represents
a payment of 0.080p per share (2014: 0.070p}.

Also during 2015, the Directors proposed a dividend of 8.045p per share (2014: 0.045p) to be paid on 27 July 2015 to those shareholders
on the register on 10 July 2015. As the distribution of the dividends by Lombard Risk Management plc requires the approval at the
shareholders’ meeting, no liabiiity in this respect is recognised in the 2015 consclidated financiaf statemnents. No income tax
consequences for Lombard Risk Management pic ar2 expecied 10 arise 33 3 resuit of this fransaction,

23. Accounting adjustments following review by the Conduct Committee of the Financial Reporting Council ("FRC”)

The Group’s financial statements for the year ended 21 March 2013 were subject to a review by the Conduct Committee of the Financiai
Reporting Council (“FRC"). Deiails of the review were published in the Group’s interim report dated 15 Ociober 2014 and are disclosed
again in full in this note 23,

The review performed dy the FRC identified that the Company’s accounting policy for the amortisation of product development costs was
not in compliance with 1AS 38 “Intangible assets” in that development cosis meeting the criteria for capitalisation were previously amortised
in equal instaiments from the end of the month in which the costs wera incurred. By contrast, paragraph 97 of IAS 38 requires amortisation

te begin when the asset is available for use.

in conjunction with the review perfarmed by the FRC, the Roard also identified that errors had arisen in the application of the Company’s
accounting poticy for the capitalisation and amortisation of product development costs in the years anded 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013.

The errors identified by the FRC and the Board are summaerised as follows:

— Certain product development costs had been capitalised subsequent to the associated preducts becoming capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. As such, these costs should have baen expensed as incurred. The effect of this error
is tc overstate the cost of capitalised preduct development costs and understate expenditure by £112,000 and £456,000 in
the years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 respectively.

- The Company had commenced amortisation of a number of products before they had become capable of operating in the manner
intanded by management. in addition, as noted above, certain product develogment costs have been capitalised in error and these
incorrectly capitalised costs were themselves subject to amortisation which was hence charged in error. The effect of these errors
is to overstate the amortisation charge and undersiate the net book value of capitalised product development costs by £124,000
and £453,000 in the years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 respectively.

The net impact of these errcrs was to understate the net result by £12,000 in the year ended 31 March 2012 and to overstate the net
result by £3,000 in the year ended 31 March 2013. Notwithstanding the fact that these amounts ara not significant to the consolidated
haiance sheet, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the Company
acknowledgas that this error affectad both the cash flow staternent and the note disciesing movements in capitalised product developrmant
costs published in the financial statements for those two years.

The sforementioned errors were identified in the vear ended 31 March 2014 and, 3s such, the unaudited comparative information

to these interim unaudited financiaf staternents has also required restatement. The effect of this restatement is to increase siaff costs

by £141,000 and reduce amortisation charges by apgroximately £552,000. Net cash inflows from operating activities have decreased

by £141,600 with a corresponding decrease in nat cash outfiows from investing actwities for the unaudited comparative interim financial
statements for the six month period endad 30 September 2013. These adjustments have bean reflected in the comparative prirary staternents
of these interim unaudited financial statements and the earnings per share figure has likewise been restated.

With respect to praduct developrent cosis, the table below sets out the correct information for bath years and also includes the infarmation
which was previously presented, in order to aid comparison.

Annual report and accounts 2015 Lombard Risk Management plc 51

SuBWINLRS [ePURULY



Financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 31 March 2015

23. Accounting adjustments following review by the Conduct Committee of the Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”) continued

Intangibie assets

pitalised
Jevelopment Capitatised
0SS as Tots! 58 deveiopment
praviously previously costs Toial
S stated siated restated resiated
Group £000 000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
ALl Aprit 201 3,910 e 3910 0 e 3,210
Additions 2,830 3,318 6,148 3,206 6,036
Fareign exchange effect 36 - 36 e 36
At 31 March 2012 6,776 3,318 10,034 3,206 9,882
AL Aprit 2012 6,776 3,318 10,094 3,206 3,982
Additions 39 4,278 4,317 3,822 3,861
Foreign axchange effect 80 80 e 20
At 31 March 2013 6,895 7,596 14,491 7,028 13,923
Amortisation
At 1 Aprii 2011 266 — 266 — 266
Provided in the year 73 287 360 1863 236
At 31 March 2¢12 339 287 626 163 562
At Y Aprif 2012 333 287 626 163 502
Provideg in the year 114 1,028 1,142 57% 689
Foreign exchange effect 7 7 — 7
¢ 31 March 2¢13 450 1,315 1,775 738 1,198
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 6,435 6,281 12,716 6,290 12,725
At 31 March 2012 6,437 3,031 9,468 3,043 9,480

Whilst the above errors had no impact on the net cash position of the Company in either year, they resuited in errors in the cash flow

staterment as operating and investing activities were misstated due to the aforementioned incorrect amiortisation and capitalisation

of costs respactively. Restated cash flow statements for both years are set out on page 53.
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23. Accounting adjustments following review by the Conduct Committee of the Financial Reporting Council (“FRC") continued

Consotidated cash fiow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Year ended
31 March 2012

Year ended
31 March 2013

As As
ureviousty ureviously

stated Restated stated Hestated

£000 £000 £600 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the period 2,505 2,517 3,714 3,711
Tax {credit) / charge (18) (18) 182 182
Finance incorne 2 2 — —
Finance expense 32 32 86 86
Operating profit 2,517 2,529 3,982 3,979
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 122 122 140 149
Amortisation 360 236 1,142 689
Share-based payment charge 21 21 2 2
{lncrease) / decrease in trade and other receivables (2,504} (2,504) 825 825
increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 315 315 (114} {114}
increase 7 {decresse) in deferred incame 1,018 1,018 {173} (173}
Foreign exchange gains (84) (24} {49} 49}
Other non-cashcregit e e 51) &1
Cash generated from operations 1,765 1,653 5,704 5,248
Tax credit received 18 18 53 53
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,783 1,671 5,757 5,301
Cash flows from investing activities
interest received 2 2 — —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and computer software {195) (195) {209} (209)
Purchase of business (1,963) (1,9€3) (470} (470}
Capitalisation of development <osis {3,318) (3,206} {4,278) (3,822)
Net cash used in investing activities (5,474} (5,362) 4,957} (4,501}
Cash flows from financing activities
interest paid — — (86) (36}
Loans from bank 2,000 2,000 323 32
Leans and other consideration paid — - (667} {867}
Shares issued, net of issue costs 140 140 1,509 1,509
Dividend paid (103) (103} {139) (139}
Net cash generated from financing activities 2,037 2,037 946 546
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,654) (1,654) 1,746 1,746
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,782 1,782 128 128
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 128 128 1874 1,874
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Financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
Parent Company financial statements

independent auditor’s report to the members

of Lambard Risk Management plc

We have audited the Farent Company financial stataments of
tombard Risk Management plc for the year ended 31 March 2015
which comprise the Parent Company balance sheet and the related
notes. The financial reporting framework that has been appiied in
their preparation is applicabie law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely tc the Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compianies Act 2006,
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to
thern in an Auditor's report and for no other purpacse. 1o the fullest
extent parmitted by law, we do not accept or assume respoensitility
to anyone other than the Company and the Cernpany’s members
as a bogy, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Diractors’ responsibilities statement
set out on page 25, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the Parent Company financial staternents and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and
2xpress an opinion on the Parent Cornpany finandcial statements

in accordance with applicable law and international Standards

on Auditing (UK and irefand). Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s (“AFBs") Ethical Standards

for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements
is providad on the Financial Reporiing Council’s website at
www. frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements
in our opinion the Paient Campany financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs
3s 3t 31 March 2015;

~ have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006.
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Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our apinion the information given in the Sirategic reportand
Diractors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the Parent Company
financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following ratters where
the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you i, in our apinion:

- adequate accouning records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

~ the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreemant
with the accounting records and returns; or

— cerizin disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by faw
are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and exgianations we
require for our audit.

Other matter
W2 have reported separately on the Group finandial statements of
Lombard Risk iManagement plc for the year ended 31 March 2015.

\.
Simon Bevan 7&‘:—”’(’6_ uir (/L—P

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

20 May 2015

o
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 March 2015

As at As at
3t March 31 Marchr
2015 2014
Cempany numbar: 03224870 Nete £300 £00C
Fixed assets
Tangitle assets 4 215 129
intangible assets 61 132
investmenis in subsidiaries 5 12,611 12,611
12,887 12,872
Current assets
Debtors due within one year 6 7.478 7,417
Cash at bank andg in: hand —_— 88
7,478 7,508
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 7 (747) {1,042}
Net current assets 6,731 6,453
Total assets fess current liabilities 19,618 19,235
Net assets 19,618 19,235
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 1,750 1,747
Share premium 10 9,404 2,375
Other reserves 10 7,247 7.047
Proiit and loss account 10 1,217 1,166
Shareholders’ funds ~ 19,618 19,335
The financial staternents were a _'ro dﬂpy the Board and authorised for issue on 20 May 2015 and signed o its behalf by:
Philip Crawford
Executive Chairman
_/\./\_/
The accompanying accounting golicies and notes form an intagral part of these financial statemants.
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1. Accounting policies

{A) Basis of preparation

The segarate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. As permitteg by that Act,
the separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with aif applicabie United Kingdorn Accounting Standards and
on a historical cost basis.

(B} Gaing cancern
The financial statements have, as in previous years, been prepared on a going concern basis.

in ferming an opinion that the Company and the Grougp is a geing concern, the Directors have taken particular note of the trading
performance in the year ended 31 March 2015, both in the signing of new business contracts and in the realised financial resulis. These
show continued profitahility and stahility in the cash pbalance at 21 March 2615, The Directors have prepared a cash fiow forecast for the
period to 20 June 2016, which shows that the Company and Group have sufficient faciiities for ongeing operations. Whilst there will always
remain some inherent uncertainty within the aforementioned forecasts, the Directors believe the Company and Group have sufficient
resoufcas 1o continue in operaiional exisience for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statemenis.

Accordingly the Directors continue te adopt the gsing concern basis in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

{C) Foreign exchange
Transactions in forign currencies are recorded at the raie ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denorminated

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance shaet date. All differences are taken to the profit and
loss account.

(D) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of alt timing differences that have criginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that resuit in an obligation to pay more, or a right tc pay less, tax in the future have occurred at the halance
shaet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised when it is more likely than not thai they will be recovered. Deferred tax is measured

using rates of tax that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

() Leased assets

All leases held by the Company are regarded as operating leases and the payrnents made under them are charged o the profit
and lass account on a straight line tasis over the lease term.

{F} Fixed and intangible assets

Depreciation is provided using the following rates and hases 50 as to write off the cost or valuation of fixed and intangible assets
over their useful fives in the Company’s business:

Cornputer software 50% to 100% straight lire
Computer hardware 50% straight line
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 25% straight line

{G) Ivestments in subsidiaries

investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost less any provision for permanent diminution in value.

{H) Share options issued to empioyees

All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share-based payment are measured at their fair values. Where employees
are rewarded using share-basad payments, the fair values of employees’ services are determined indirecily by referance io the lair value
of the instrument granted to the employee. This fair value is appraised at the grant date using a binomial model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.

All equity-settied share-based payments are ultimately recognised as an expense in the statement of cormprehansive income with

a corresponding cradit 1o "other reserves”.

if vesting periods or other non-market vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocaied over the vesting period, based on the bast available
astimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised if there is any indication that the number
of share options expected {o vest differs from previous estimates. Any cumulative adjustment pricr to vesting is recognised in the current
period. No adjustment is made to any expense recognised in prior periods if share options ultimataly exercised are different to that
estimated on vesting.

Share options vest no earlier than the second anniversary of issue. The vesting period runs for two to ten years from the date the
options first vest, There are no other perfermance conditions other than the vesting periad.

Upon exarcise of shara options the proceeds received net of attributable transaction costs are cradited to share capitaf and, where appropriate,
share premium.
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2. Directors and employees

2015 2014
Staff costs inchuding Cirectors £000 £20C
Wages and salaries 2,398 2,190
Social security costs 462 381
Pension costs 36 15
Share-based payrents charge (note 17 1o the consofidated financial statemants) 212 67
Total staff costs 3,108 2,653

3. Profit for the financial year
The Parent Corpany has taken 2dvantage of Section 408 of the Cormpanies Act 2008 and has not included its own profit and loss account
in these financial statements. The Parent Company’s profit for the year was £249,533 (2014; £200,252).

4. Fixed assets

Cornputer fiings and Cornputer

hardware equipment software Totat
Zompany £C00 £00C £€00 £20C
Cost
AL 1 Aprii 2014 1,066 459 548 2,072
Additicns 92 123 50 265
At 31 March 2015 1,158 582 598 2,338
Depreciation
At 1 Aprii 2014 9€1 435 416 1,812
Charge far the year 110 19 121 250
At 31 March 2015 1,071 454 537 2,062
Net book vaiue
At 31 March 2015 87 128 61 276
At 31 March 2014 105 24 132 261
5. Investments in subsidiaries

2015 2014

trvastents in subsidiaries R £000 £C00
At 1 Aprit ang 31 March 12,611 12,611

The Directors have considerad the carrying value of the investments in subsigiaries and have concluded. on the basis of forecast financial
performance of the subsidiaries, that no impairment in vaiue has taken place and therefore that no provision is currently required.

At 31 March 2015 the undertakings in which the Company held more thar 20% of the aiiotted share capital were as follows:

Praportion of
Ordinary Share capitat heid

By Parant By Groun Caiinry of

(%) (%} incorporation Business
Lombard Risk Systems Limited 100 100 UK Software
Lombard Risk Comptiance Limited 160 10¢ UK Software
Lombard Risk International Limited 100 160 China Software
Lombard Risk Systams inc. — 100 us Software
tombard Risk international {USA) inc. — 100 us Sofiware
Lombard Risk Internationat (Hong Kong) Limited — 100 Hong Kong Software
Lombard Risk international (Singapore) Limited — 100 Singapore Software
Lombard Risk Consultants Limited 100 100 UK Services
Lorabard Risk Systerns (Asia Pacific) Limited — 100 Hong Konyg Dormant
Lombard Risk Compliance Policies Limited 80 3¢ UK Sofiware

All of the subsidiary undertakings have been included in the consnlidation. Swapval Limited changed its name te Lombard Risk
Compliance Policies Limited on 7 August 2012 and the company has since commenced trading.
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
For the year ended 31 March 2015

6. Debtors due within one year

%15 2634

£000 £300

Amounts receivable from subsisiary undartakings 7,310 7,199
Prepayments and sundry debtors 168 218
7,478 7,417

The amounis due from subsidiary companies are dug on demand. However, in the opinion of the Diractors, it is unfikely that thase amounts
will be fully repaid within the next financial year.

7. Creditors due within one year

2015 2034
£000 £000
Borrowings — 667
Trade creditors 444 207
Accruals 303 168
747 1,042

All the borrowings were repaid during the financial year under review and there is no ocutstanding balance at 31 March 2015. Borrowings
at 31 March 2014 comprised a Sterling bank ican.

The Sterling barik loan was repayable in eqizal quarierly instaiments over a threa-yeat term with the first repayment in April 2012

The loan principal was £2.0m and interest was payable at the rate of LIBOR + 4%. There is no balance outsianding at 31 March 2015
was (2014: £0.67m).

8. Taxation
There is no recognised or unrecognised deferred tax asset or liability in the balance sheet.

9. Share capital

2615 2014
£000 £000
Authorised
714,034,085 Ordinary Shares of 0.5p each (2014: 714,034,085) 3,570 3,570
Allotted, called up and fully paid
262,911,260 Ordinary Shares of 0.5p each (2014: 263,3€6,260) 1,320 1,317
429,823,575 deferred shares of 0.1p each (2014: 429,828,575) 430 430
1,750 1,747

The deferred shares cany no rights to raceiva dividends or to participate in 2ny profits of the Company. The shareholders are not entitled
to attend any meetings of the Company or have any rights to participate in any return of capital (except on a winding up). The deferred
shares are not transferable other than with the consent of all the Directors of the Company.

Share issue

On 8 December 2014, the Company issued 250,000 Ordinary Shares of 0.5p ger share as part of the Company’s share option scheme;
further details are provided in note 17. The shares were issued at a premium of 5.0p per share, which has been credited o the share
premium account.

On 26 January 2015, the Cornpany issued 145,000 Ordinary Shares of 0.5p per share as part of the Company’s share option scheme; further
detaiis are provided in note 17. The shares were issued at a premium of 5.5p per share, which has been credited to the share premiun account.
On 9 February 2015, the Company issued 150,000 Ordinary Shares of 0.5p per share as part of the Company’s share option scheme; further
details are proviged in note 17. The shares were issued ai a premium of 5.5p per share, which has been credited to the share premivm account,

The maximum total numbar of Crdinary Shares, which may vest in the future in respect the Company share option schemes is 35,283,623
{2014: 22,220,000}. These shares will only be issued subject to the rules of the share option schemes and the vesting periods defined
at the time of grant {see note 17 io the consoiidaied financial siatemenis).
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10. Share premium and other reserves

Sitare frerniuemn Other Sharehclders'

Cepitat aceount TesEIve: account iunds

£000 €606 £200 £600 £00C

Balunce at 1 April 2014 1,747 9,375 7,047 1,166 19,335
issue of share capital, net of issue costs 3 29 — — 32
Profit for the year e e e 250 250
Dividend — — — (211) @211
Share-based psyment charge e 212 e 212
Share option lapsed or exercised — — (12) 12 —
Balance at 31 March 2015 1,750 9,404 7,247 1,217 19,618

Other reserves relate {0 nagative goodwiil arising on the acguisition of a subsidiary undertaking prior to 1 April 1897, merger reserve
andg niet. foreign exchange movements in conneciion with overseas subsidiaries,

11. Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in financial Reporting Standard 8 “Related party disclosures” and has not disclosed
transactions with wholly owned Group undertakings.

Tha Company charged £256,000 {2014: £145,000) to Lombard Risk Compliance Policies Limited in raspect of suppaort services providad.
in addition, working capital support was provided totailing £273,000 (2G14: £115,000). The balance owed by Lombard Risk Compliance
Poficies Limited to the Company at 31 March 2015 is £1,052,000 (2014: £523,000). The Company has made provision of £648,000
{2014: £Nil) against the balance owed by Lombarg Risk Compliance Policies Limited.

fombard Risk Management pls has provided & leiter of guarantee to Lombard Risk Compliance Policias Limifed confinming that it will provide
it with working capital support, if required, until 31 May 2016,

Key managenient of the Group are the Directors of the Parent Company. The aggregate dividends paig to Directors in the year were
£89,000. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial staternents and in the Remuneration
Commitiee report.

There are no other related party transactions in this reporiing year or comgparative period.
party gy P
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